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4:21 P.M.

CALIFORNIA,

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2019

SECRETARY TIONIN
reporter 1is ready.

Commissioners,

: Okavy,

the court

we left off on Item 12,

for Case No. 2018-007883ENV, fo

r the Balboa

Reservoir Project. This is the draft

Environmental Impact Report.

Please note that written comments will

accepted at the Planning Department until 5:00

p.m., on September 23, 2019.

And I would like to just stress and

remind members of the public your testimony

should be on the accuracy and adequacy of the

final Environmental Impact Report, not your

opinion of the project itself.

MS. POLING: Good afternoon Vice

President Koppel and members of the Commission.

be

I'm Jeanie Poling, Planning Department staff and

Environmental Coordinator for the Balboa

Reservoir Project.

Can I have the

California
(510)

screen?

Reporting,
313-0610

Thank vyou.
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item before you is the review and comment on the
Balboa Reservoir Project draft Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report, or EIR. The purpose
of today’s hearing is to take public comments on
the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the
draft Subsequent EIR pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act, or CEQA, and San
Francisco’s local procedures for implementing
CEQA. No approval action on this document 1is
requested at this time.

The public review period for the
project’s draft Subsequent EIR began on August 8
and will continue until 5:00 p.m., on September
23.

I'"1ll briefly explain why we’re preparing
a Subsequent EIR and then summarize the project
description and analysis before opening up the
meeting to public comment.

The 17-acre project site i1s the western
portion of the Balboa Reservoir, which is within
the Balboa Park Station Plan Area. The
programmatic EIR for the area plan was certified
in 2008 and it assumed 500 dwelling units would
be developed at the reservoir project site.

A Subsequent EIR is a whole new EIR that
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focuses on the conditions that need new analysis.
The current project proposes more density than
was assumed in the Area Plan EIR, so it’s a
revision to the project and it identifies new,
significant environmental impacts, and
substantially more severe impacts than those
identified in the 2008 Area Plan EIR.

Thus, the CEQA document we are preparing
is a Subsequent EIR and it uses as a base the
analysis that was done for the 2008 Area Plan
EIR.

The draft Subsequent EIR analyzes two
different sets of options for the site’s
residential density to capture a range of
possible development on the project site. The
developer’s proposed option is proposed by
Reservoir Community Partners and the additional
housing option has been developed by the City to
maximize affordable housing.

Development under each of the two options
would entail the same land uses, street
configurations, and site plans. The additional
housing option adds one story to each of the
buildings and includes smaller units to increase

the number or residences.
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The developer’s proposed option includes
1,100 dwelling units and a public parking garage.
The additional housing option includes 1,550
units and no public parking garage.

The draft Subsequent EIR also analyzes
four project variants. These variants are
located at the same project site and they all
relate to the parking garage location and
transportation access.

Before I discuss the findings, I’d like
to point out that in February 2019 the Planning
Department updated its Transportation Impact
Analysis guidelines. These guidelines provide
methodologies and criteria for undertaking
transportation review in San Francisco. They
include updated travel demand rates that account
for vehicles operating as Transportation Network
Companies, or TNCs.

The Balboa Reservoir Project’s
transportation analysis is based on these rates
and, therefore, analyzes the impacts of TNCs.

I"l1l now summarize the draft Subsequent
EIR’s significant and unavoidable impact
findings. The draft Subsequent EIR identifies

three significant and unavoidable impacts during

California Reporting, LLC
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project construction. These involve construction
noise, regional air quality during the three-year
construction schedule, and localized air quality
during the three-year construction schedule.

All three of these impacts would be
significant under both project options and all
project areas.

The draft Subsegquent EIR identifies two
transportation-related impacts during project
operation. One involves potential conflicts
related to loading along the Lee Avenue
extension, which is currently a dead end, but
would become a through street when the project
becomes operational.

The other impact involves transit delay
under cumulative conditions due to growth at the
project site combined with growth at City
College.

Both of these impacts would be
significant under both project options and all
project variants.

The draft Subseguent EIR identifies four
project alternatives. A no project alternative,
which is required by CEQA law, a reduced density

alternative, an alternative that allows passenger
8
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vehicle access from Westwood Park via San Ramon
Way, and a six-year construction alternative.

The only build alternative that would
reduce significant and unavoidable impacts is the
six-year construction schedule, which would
reduce the two significant construction air
quality impacts to less than significant with
mitigation.

Significant transportation impacts during
project operation would occur under both options
and all variants.

While the San Ramon Way vehicle access
alternative and the reduced density alternative
would reduce transportation-related impacts, they
wouldn’t reduce them to less-than-significant
levels.

Today, the Planning Department is seeking
comments on the adequacy and accuracy of the
information contained in the draft Subsequent
EIR. For members of the public who wish to
speak, please fill out a speaker card and state
your name for the record. Please speak slowly
and clearly so that the court reporter can make
an accurate transcript of today’s proceedings.

Staff is not here to respond to comments
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today. Instead, we will transcribe all verbal
and written comments received today, and during
the public comment period, and we will respond to
these comments that raise significant
environmental issues in a responses to comment
document.

SECRETARY IONIN: I'm sorry, there are no
speaker cards.

MS. POLING: Sorry. Okay, no speaker
cards, but you can line up. Correct? Okay,
sorry about that.

So, we will respond to written and oral
comments in a responses to comments document,
which we anticipate publishing in the spring of
2020.

Those who are interested in submitting
written comments on the draft Subsequent EIR may
do so by email or by hardcopy. All comments must
be received by 5:00 p.m., on Monday, September
23.

Unless the Commissioners have procedural
questions, I respectfully suggest that the public
hearing on this item be opened. Thank vyou.

SECRETARY IONIN: Okay, members of the

public, please line up on our left, your right
10
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side of the room, and come on up.

MS. ANDERSON: Hello, my name is Lisa

Anderson. I'm here on behalf of myself, my
husband, and my son. We live in Monterey Heights
and we’re supporters of this project. Looking at

the Environmental Impact Report, we don’t see any
reason that this project should not go through.

Housing 1is such an issue in San Francisco
and this project has already been reduced in
scope, so we would urge you to support this.

As a former high school administrator, it
broke my heart to see all of the students who
could not afford to live here. And I’ve just had
to say goodbye to my son’s best friend, who grew
up on Wildwood, just blocks from this project.

So, please, approve this project.

SECRETARY IONIN: Thank vyou. Next
speaker please.

MR. JA: My name’s Alvin Ja. I've
already submitted gquite a number of written
comments to you. Hopefully, you’ve been able to
read some of them. And I have pointed out a
whole lot of inadequacies in the SEIR.

I'm wearing this shirt that says “No War

on Iraqg”. That’s because I don’t have a shirt
11
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that says no invasion of luxury housing onto the
Balboa Reservoir. And I am in favor of
affordable housing, but not luxury housing.

Yeah, I’'11 just talk about two
inadegquacies out of all the things that I’'ve
written so far, and there will be more written
comments forthcoming. But I’11 talk about two.

This is a weapon of mass destruction in
terms of what the Balboa Reservoir project 1is
doing. You know, similar to the Irag war where
they were looking for weapons of mass
destruction, we have one right here with the
reservolr project.

And how do I mean? During the Iraqg war,
the British Intelligence Agency, M1l6, wrote what
was called the Downing Street Memo. And what the
Downing Street memo said that the facts -- excuse
me . The evidence and the facts or the
intelligence and the facts were fixed around the
policy.

And that’s what we have right here. You
have the Planning Department that has set this
whole -- which is sponsoring the reservoir
project. And the policy and the SEIR is being

fixed around that policy.
12
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Okay, so I’1ll go to two specifics. One
is the environmental setting. Okay, that’s
critical for CEQA, setting up the environmental
baseline setting. The description that’s given
in the SEIR basically just talks about the plot
itself. But CEQA, 1in terms of the Code of
California Regulations, says you have to talk

about the wvicinity, not just the plot, itself.

So, that, already, right there is in wviolation of

CCR 15125. You can look it up, okay.

The second one is regarding transit
delay. Okay, transit delay is defined in this
SEIR with a threshold of significance. And it’s

an invented threshold of significance. And what

does the SEIR say: The threshold of significance

i1s four minutes. What does that mean in terms of

the reservoir? It means that, oh, the reservoir
project can contribute four minutes of delay on
MUNI without it being considered to be
significant. So, 1t’s BS. Okay, read it
carefully before you certify it.

SECRETARY IONIN: Thank you, sir. Next
speaker please.

MR. ZELTZER: Steve Zeltzer, United

-JA1-2

-JA1-3

Public Workers for Action. I think we see today,
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already, the results of your disastrous Planning
Commission decisions. Warrior Stadium i1is a good
example of that. You approved that without
proper transit. A violation of your rules, but
you did it because you’re basically a kept
commission, which represents the developers.
That’s why all today you’ve been going along with
whatever the developers want. You’re saying to
hell with the people of San Francisco, 1t’s okay
to have more gridlock.

Now, this project, at Ocean, the Balboa
Reservoir, 1s a project that will destroy City
College of San Francisco. That’s not in your
plans, although that will be the result. To have
construction, massive construction and 1,500
condos next to the college prevents the college
from developing. It will create chaos. But vyou
don’t really give a damn about City College or
the people of San Francisco because you represent
the developers.

That’s what I think more and more people
understand who come here; they see you as shills
for the developers. The fact of the matter 1is
this is a corrupt operation and the City of San

Francisco has spent millions of dollars for

14
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Avalon for these meetings, staged meetings to
really grease the way for this development.
These homes, these condos are not for the people
of San Francisco, working people, students,
professors; they’re for people who have a lot of
money, who can afford million-dollar condos.
That’s not the kind of construction we need. We
need working class construction.

Now, the San Francisco Labor Council has
said, along with the Union, AFP 21, the PUC
should transfer that property to City College for
development. That’s what we support. It
shouldn’t be privatized, as you’re supporting
these developers to do.

Avalon and the developers are interested
in one thing, profit, profiteering off the land
of San Francisco. We need working class housing
in San Francisco, not more million-dollar condos.
But that’s, apparently, what you are driven to do
by the developers who appointed you and who you
represent.

The students at San Francisco City

College need that parking. There’s no plans for
parking for them. These are working class
students who work at jobs. Where are they going

15
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to go? They’re going to be driven out of City
College because they won’t have parking. They
have to go to their jobs. They won’t be able to.
They’1ll go to other colleges. That’s part of the
privatization and the destruction of City
College, which is being pushed, really, by the
developers and the mayor of San Francisco. And
if the supervisors approve that, they’re part of
this actual development process.

So, we say to the public of San
Francisco, stop this corrupt, rotten development,
the more gridlock on Ocean Avenue. There’s no
way of getting mass transportation out there.

The MTA has said they can’t provide the extension
of the Ocean Avenue, which means there will be
gridlock. There is gridlock now, and you want to
encourage more gridlock for the people of San
Francisco.

You have to be held accountable for the
terrible situation of the Warriors, with two
stadiums, now. A hospital, two hospitals, or a
hospital and Kaiser, and people can’t go to their
own facilities.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you, sir.

Next speaker please.
16
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SECRETARY IONIN: I will remind members

of the public that the purpose of today’s hearing

is to accept testimony on the accuracy, adequacy,

and completeness of the Environmental Impact
Report.

DR. CURRIER: Good afternoon. That’s a

tough one to follow, but I’'ve got a few concerns.

My name’s Dr. Andrew Currier. I'm representing

Archbishop Riordan High School, as its President.

There’s a multitude of concerns. But as
it relates to this report, we serve 680 boys, 9
to 12, and a gquarter of them, 170 of them, have
diagnosed learning needs. And if you see, 1f I

could pull this up, this circle RSP; that

represents the learning area. It’s a specialized

designed learning area for students with
diagnosed learning needs that they can’t -- we

can’t move them elsewhere in the building.

So, we're worried that there’s not enough

information about the noise, the dust, the

disruption to their learning growth, their

academic growth. Again, we don’t have any option

to move them elsewhere in the building, so we
really want more detail on that. We want some

sensitivity to that. These are young men that

California Reporting, LLC
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cannot be served by San Francisco public schools.
These are specialized programs.

We also have 50 students in residence at
Archbishop Riordan High School who, also, some of
them have significant learning needs. They can’t

go elsewhere to receive this help.

/
O-ARHS-1 (cont.)

So, we need more information about the
noise impact. How is this all -- how is the
hammering, the excavation, the drilling, all of
that noise, all of that disruption, the trucks
when they’re beeping to back up, the backhoes,
all that noise, how is that going to impact -- 1is
that going to be two years lost on 170 students’
education, who are trying despite learning needs
and differences, to prepare themselves for
college.

They’re paying, in some cases, $60,000 a
year to attend Riordan for this specialized care.
That’s all going to be disrupted for two plus
years? That’s unacceptable to us. So, we need
more detail on this.

The other thing is we’re worried that
fire trucks aren’t going to be able to get to our
school in case of a fire. There’s not been

enough detail or clarity about transportation.

O-ARHS-2

0-ARHS-3

18
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They’ve delayed that meeting. That was supposed
to take place this week. That has not occurred.
It’s been delayed until September 30th. I need

more clarity on the impact of transportation on

our school.

The other thing is there’s not nearly
enough detail about the blockage of light into
our building. It was designed to have natural
light coming in to warm the building, to enhance
the culture of learning for our students in the
classrooms. That’s all going to be blocked.

So, thank you for listening.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank vyou. Next

speaker please.

MR. PEDERSON: Thank you very much. My
name 1s Christopher Pederson, a resident of the
Ingleside. I strongly support the additional
housing option version of this project. It is
environmentally superior to options and
alternatives that provide less transit-oriented
affordable housing and/or more public parking.

To reduce the amount of housing would
increase pressure on housing in areas that are
more automobile dependent and have more extreme

climate. To provide more public parking would

California Reporting, LLC
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undercut efforts to address climate change by
reducing automobile use.

That said, this draft fails to evaluate
how the developer’s proposed public parking
garage would undercut City College’s efforts to
reduce automobile use. The College’s 2019
Transportation Demand Management and Parking Plan
concludes that TDM measures would be sufficient
to address the loss of parking spaces caused by
this project. The only exception will be during
a few hours of the first week of each semester.
Even then, the shortfall would be less than one-
third of the 750 spaces proposed in the public
parking garage.

There 1s, therefore, no need for such a
large public parking garage. It would undercut
the City’s and the College’s efforts to respond
to the climate crisis by reducing automobile use.

Finally, the transit improvement
mitigation measures identified in the draft
should not be deferred until after the project 1is
shown to have an adverse impact on transit
service. Congestion when City College is in
session and congestion associated with the Whole

Foods Grocery Store are already impeding transit
20
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service. So, the project proponents should be
working with MUNI, now, to implement transit
improvement measures up front without waiting for

proof of additional adverse impacts in the

future. Thank you very much.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker please.

MR. SCHNEIDER: Hi there. My name is
Benjamin Schneider. I'm a resident of District 7,
in Ingleside Terraces, and I’m speaking on behalf
of myself and my parents, with whom I live as a
24-year-old college grad, largely because of the
dearth of the affordable housing options in San
Francisco. And, specifically, the dearth of
affordable, reasonably-sized housing options in
my own neighborhood, in the OMI, off Ocean
Avenue.

So, I'm thrilled to see that this project
is making its way through the process with all of
these more reasonably sized units, that are still
transit accessible, and in this great location.

And it appears to me, with my untrained
eye, that the Environmental Impact Report is in

order and it should proceed to the next rounds of

approval.
21
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And I’d also like to say that the kind of ]

thing that isn’t included in the Environmental
Impact Report is the number of people who will
live in these places in the future, without cars,
and who will be taking public transit in San
Francisco, rather than that same number of people
living out in Modesto and driving into San
Francisco every day, for an hour and a half. So,
I think those are really important environmental
considerations to make as well.

I want to also reiterate what the
previous speaker said. That I hope that the
Commission approves the more housing-rich option
and thinks very seriously about these parking
garages, and increasing transit service sooner,
rather than later. Thank you.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank vyou. Next
speaker please.

MR. MOSS: Good evening Commissioners.
Thanks for having this lovely meeting. Really
appreciate your time.

My name is Sam Moss. I'm the Executive
Director of Mission Housing Development
Corporation. We’re a 48-year-old nonprofit,

affordable housing developer that is one of three
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affordable housing developers on this team.

Really want to reiterate that, that when
developers are being disparaged, it 1is
disparaging three nonprofits who have provided
over a century, and thousands upon thousands of
one hundred percent low-income affordable housing
to San Francisco.

And to be frank, Avalon is an incredible
market rate developer that knows and understands
the community. This project has taken everything
into account and then some. And, you know,
Mission Housing has over a thousand children that
live in our buildings. We take their health and
safety very seriously. We do occupied rehab
projects in their buildings all the time.

So, not to say that those concerns aren’t
valid, but I am personally saying that as one of
the co-developers of this project that the
community and its safety are top of our list.

But I do hope that you see fit to keep
this going forward today and thank you for your
time.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank vyou. Next
speaker, please.

MS. FOOTE: Hi, Laura Foote, YIMBY
23
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Action. I have been speaking in favor of Balboa
Reservoir for a couple years, now. And if we
can’t have an Environmental Impact Report tell us
that i1it’s better to have dense, vibrant, walkable
housing instead of a giant parking lot, then I
don’t know what to say about the future of San
Francisco’s ability to deal with climate change.

It’s obvious that we should be turning
parking into housing. It is obvious that it will
be for the benefit of literally thousands of
people who will have the ability to live in this
50-percent affordable housing project.

Another great thing, planners have worked
really hard to do these cross-subsidized projects

in a world where we don’t have enough funding for

subsidized affordable housing. We’re working on
things 1like the bond. We’re working on other
sources of stable funding. These 50-percent

affordable projects, where we get to cross-
subsidize with market rate housing in order to
get more low-income housing, we need to be
celebrating those projects.

This is exactly the kind of thing that
allows the city to get a lot more units of

subsidized affordable housing.
24
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It’s tragic to be speaking for this
project over and over again. It’s been since
2008 and this is the fourth time they have tried
to build housing here. And if San Francisco
cannot get its act together and turn a 1l7-acre
parking lot into walkable housing, then we are
not going to solve any of our other problems.
Thank vyou.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank vyou. Next

speaker, please.

BRAD: Hi. My name’s Brad. I'’ve lived
here. I grew up here. I was born here. But vyou
have to really think about this location. It’s
City College. It’s the main campus. So, you

really have to think about what this use is for
and the impact.

I'm all for, you know, affordable
housing. I believe in, you know, biking. But
you really have to think about all the people
that can’t bike here to that location. You know,
it’s very valuable to be able to have a parking
lot and so that it opens it to everybody that
wants to be able to park there. And it’s
frustrating and I'm sure you guys are frustrated,

too, that it’s dragged on so long. But there’s a
25
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reason why it’s dragged on so long because people
really, you know, that believe in this. I'"'m glad
that we’re really taking time to make sure that
this is. And also, so I'm also disabled, and so,
you have to think about the mobility of the, you
know, people that need to be able to get to
campus and to get to class on time.

Obviously, you know, parking’s very

limited. So, thanks for your time.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank vyou. Next
speaker, please.

MS. NGUYEN: Hi. Sorry, I'm a little
nervous. This is my first time at any of these
meetings and watching other people speak, 1it’s
incredibly inspiring -- sorry. My name 1is Jess
Nguyen and I have been a student since January
2018 and a proud recipient of free City. I'm
incredibly grateful for the opportunity to change
my life and my career. And now, you help protect
the access for future students.

I would like to echo the student
disability advocate, Brad, for his statements on
the already lack of available parking for
disabled students. The parking lot is not just

parking it’s a representation of students,
26
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students carpool. They work two or three jobs /

just to go to school. Free city 1is their only
option to go and actually get to the next level.
They can’t afford to even live -- I would -- I've
heard the pictures shown in the developer’s plan,
of the land in guestion, showing the CCSF parking
lot as being under-utilized. The photo was said
to be taken on a Sunday. I don’t know about you,
but we don’t offer many Sunday classes at our
school or on Ocean campus. The library isn’t
even open. I don’t think it’s a fair
representation of the current service this public
land provides.

Nearby, Riordan uses the parking lot
during the school year for band practice. The
upper CCSF lot is filled by 10:00 a.m. and the
Balboa Reserved Public Land has been essential
for students.

Students have been posting videos on
Twitter of the Balboa Reservoir being occupied by
students, at ccsfstudentsays/#ccsfbottomlaw and
ccsfsaid.

Students are going to experience the pain
and it’s going to affect the success of the

community. Neighborhoods are flooded with cars.

N\
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And i1f students are rushing to find parking in
residential, surrounding areas, then you’re going
to increase the risk of pedestrian fatalities.

SF is known as a premier city. During
the transit week, associate students surveyed
students on their MUNI commute to school. One
tweeted result showed that a large number of
students take over an hour to get to school on
MUNTI. Students commute over an hour just to come
here to learn. And it’s not a surprise that
veteran students come in droves to San Francisco.
The education and higher rate of reimbursement
encourages them to come all the way from
Hollister, Joshua Tree, Stockton and Sacramento
just to go. Where will students go?

Pushing the responsibilities -- pushing
the burden on neighbors seems irresponsible.

Is this the absolute best use of the
land? The school isn’t perfect. It had seven to
eight chancellors in the last decade. I guestion
its management of money and how the CCSF
Transportation Report represented students.

I"ve sat on the land. I've organized.
I'"ve advocated and I’ve talked to students for

hours at a time. Seventy percent of the CCSF
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teaching staff are now part-timers. Their

salaries won’t even cover affordable housing that

Avalon claims to build. 4

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MR. ADAMS: Hello. My name is Michael
Adams. I come to you as a student of City
College, a former City Planner, a former
Administrator of a major university in this City,
and a person who lives in a walkable
neighborhood.

The access from my walkable neighborhood
to City College is accomplished by rapid transit.
Rapid transit in San Francisco 1s getting in a
car, driving twice as far in half the time as you
can get on MUNI or BART, and getting to your
destination and doing your business, and then
departing on your next rapid transit journey.

That parking lot is more than a piece of
asphalt. It’s kind of 1like folks would call the
runways at San Francisco Airport a parking lot.
Without any context in terms of the cultural and
social and economic value of that property. It’s

not a parking lot. It’s a transit stop for

cript
I-Nguyen-1 (cont.)

[-Adams-1

people’s shopping and experiencing the
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educational opportunity that City College
provides.

We’ve heard remarks about zoning. This
project’s going to require a zoning change. Spot
zoning is the substance of federal lawsuits.

When a neighborhood is zoned a certain way and
people, developers, come in and capture a spot,
and create a spot zone exception to the normal
asset value of a consistently zoned neighborhood,
that’s lawsuit material.

This group, who are opposing this
project, I’'d like you to look at the diversity of
the group and then compare that with the
diversity of this panel, and then compare that
with the diversity of the project sponsors, who
can’t find a person who looks like me to support
the project.

There’s something about San Francisco
that gets preserved when diverse populations join
together to try to make their point and presence
known.

Justin Herman, who I studied under as a
City Planner, destroyed the Western Addition.

And that legacy has continued, unfortunately, in

major decisions by this City, through this
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Planning Department, through this City Board of
Supervisors. And it would be helpful, since
you’re going through a transition of
administrators, to look carefully, and not
repeating the ghost of Justin Herman.

Carlton Goodlett is a better ghost. And
he was a friend and neighbor of ours in Omaha,
Nebraska. Think about it.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank vyou. Next
speaker, please.

VICKY: Hi. My name 1is Vicky. I am a
student at City College. And I’'m here because --
I'm here to represent a lot of those who couldn’t
come with me. If you can imagine the 20,000
students who will be impacted by this, who are
currently enrolled at City College. Twenty
thousand students, vyeah.

We already, as is, are a commuter school.
We know that when we did a survey in 2016, it
showed that over 45 percent of the students have
to commute to the college. Right. And so, we
already -- we're serving a population where more
than 80 percent are either employed or looking
for paid Jjobs. So, they’re part-time students.

Or, really, they’re actually maybe taking a full
31
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course load and just working part-time.

And we know of that, there’s 26 percent
who work 26 plus hours. That’s a survey we did
in 2019.

So, 1f we’re thinking about the
population that we serve at City College, how
they live in the intersections of being
marginalized, having disabilities, being of
color, being trans, they’re probably the ones who
are working these jobs.

So, 1f you’re taking away access,
physical access to education, where they have to
transport themselves to the college, we're
probably not going to have the same level of
enrollment. These students won’t have access to
educations. Is that something we’re ready to
take away from people? From a population that’s
already marginalized?

And I would say, I am all for affordable
housing. I grew up living in Section 8s. And to
me this plan is not aggressive enough. I'm
sorry, it’s public land. A hundred percent of it
should go to affordable housing.

We know that the cost of land in San

Francisco is incredibly high. Why would we take
32
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public land and privatize it? We should be
asking for a more aggressive plan. If anything,
to expand access to education, to provide
affordable housing to students, to faculty.

I mean, unless we’re addressing their
ability to access education, then I’'m sorry, this
plan is Jjust not good enough. Thank you.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MS. SAPPHIRE: Hi. My name’s Sophie
Sapphire. I was born and raised in San Francisco
and I’ve been a City College of San Francisco
student since 2012.

I recently moved near campus, so I can
walk to school. But for seven years I had to
drive, and that was living in the City. I lived
in the outer Richmond. And to take a bus from
there to City College takes an hour and a half.
That’s the time it takes for me to walk out of my
house until I’m in my classroom. And that was
what it was like for me.

So, like Vicky said, over 40 percent of
students who go to City College commute.

And for those seven years that I drove to

school, I always had to drive straight down to
33
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the lower lot, the language -- or, excuse me, the
location that is in question, because the upper
lot is always full. And as the years have
progressed, this has only continued to get more
and more severe. There is no access to parking
on campus and, frankly, it’s a necessity for many
of these students who do work part and fulltime
Jjobs, like myself, to be able to attend school.

Furthermore, there are not going to be
enough units in this building for students to be
able to access them. It’s public land and it
should be only 100 percent affordable. And if
that can’t be, then the situation that we have
currently, with the available parking, 1is the
best situation for the students. That’s all,
thank vyou.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MS. KAUFMYN: Hi. I'm Wynd Kaufmyn and
I'"ve been a teacher at City College for 36 years.
You know, San Francisco has always prided itself
on its commitment to social justice and equity.
To that end, the City’s undertaking an effort to
train its decision makers to be more sensitive

and aware of social justice.
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In fact, I know that on September 26th
you, the Planning Commission, are scheduled to
participate in a racial and social equity
training.

In light of this, and in light of the
fact that the draft Environmental Impact Report
states the need to develop the reservoir in a
manner that will best benefit the neighborhood,
the City, and the region as a whole.

In light of these things, I ask you to
consider the social justice aspects of the
proposed Balboa Reservoir Project with respect to
housing, education, and labor.

Housing. This project is not addressing
the real crisis in San Francisco. It’s not
addressing the affordability crisis of housing.
Public land should be kept in public hands for
public good, and it should only be used for 100
percent deeply affordable housing on the Balboa
Reservoir. It certainly should not be given over
to a private developer, whose CEO makes §$7
million a year.

With regards to education, this project
will limit student access to higher education by

allowing the developer to remove their
35
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transportation options before another viable one
-- viable ones are put into place.

I want to put this picture here because
you see so many pictures of this parking lot that
are completely empty. We need to have a
counterbalance. Now, of course, 1t’s not always
this full, but it’s more toward this end of the
spectrum than the empty lots that you see in the
developer’s promotional materials.

Lastly, the social justice aspect with
regard to labor. In the January 9th, 2018 San
Francisco County Transit Authority meeting, where
the TDM was passed, Malia Cohen says this: I
believe that Avalon Bay will create a lot of
problems for us.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you, ma’am,
your time -- oh, I apologize, go ahead.

MS. KAUFMYN: Yeah. Those of us that
have relationships in labor, many times they have
come here, our labor partners have come here
raising concerns that they haven’t hired union
labor to do the job. Any project built in San
Francisco, and especially one on public land,
should be mandated to use local union labor.

Thank you.
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VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MS. COLLINS: Hello, Monica Collins,
Sunnyside. This 1is prepared.

The SEIR states that transit delay

induced by the Balboa Reservoir Project will Dbe

insignificant. But this conclusion 1is based on a

completely arbitrary, unauthorized definition of

delay on the part of the consultants.

The meaning on time performance standards

allows for a four-minute delay for an entire
route. But the 43 Masonic travels from Balboa
Reservoir, along Frida Kahlo Way, to Balboa Park
in seven minutes. Using the consultant’s
redefinition of transit delay, additional delays
of up to four minutes in just three segments,
resulting in a travel time of 19 minutes, 171
percent increase. From any perspective, whether
legal, ethical, or engineering, this 1is wrong.
The SEIR is in error in using this

faulty, invalid method of determining transit

delay.

So, as for me, I am an electrician,
construction electrician. We build things. And
I'm not against development. I'm totally in the
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bag for City College, and for diversity, and for
truly, deeply affordable housing.

Also, I'm a small-time landlord. But
this is luxury housing. Can we stop pretending
that this is L.A.? We can’t cram an infinite
number of people into a 7-by-7 square mile city,
you know, at the expense of a quiet residential
neighborhood, and a college that’s serving
working class and poor people, and many people.
And can we stop pretending that gentrification on
steroids is helping anyone.

As my friend Michael hinted, what
happened in the Fillmore District with a
bulldozer is being done, now, with
gentrification. Some call it ethnic cleansing.
Some call it bleaching. Can we stop pretending
that the Orwellian terms we’re using are
accurate? That up to 50 percent affordable
housing is 50 percent. Macy’s 1is having a sale
up to 50 percent off. Good luck finding anything
that’s 50 percent off. Up to means less than,
okay.

Now, $140,000 a year 1s affordable for a
single person for housing? Oh, please. $4,000 a

month for an Avalon Bay one-bedroom apartment is
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affordable? Oh, please. Transit rich is just a
substitute for we’re not going to plan, budget,
or spend for MUNI.

I talked to Carmen Chu. Developer money
is rolling in and you can afford to subsidize
housing. Thank you.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MR. RANDOLPH: Hello. I'"'m Theodore

Randolph, resident of the Excelsior. And I think

if there’s inadequacy in the EIR it’s that it

plans for the impacts of too few people. So, the

previous attempts to build housing at the Balboa
Reservoir were planning for like 100, or 500
units of housing and now the developer’s option
is 1,100. I think that’s too small.

When we started this process that was

five years ago. It looks 1like it’s going to take

up to another ten years, if this goes ahead, to
finish all those new buildings. And in the
subsequent years, our needs could increase even
more. So, we should be open to -- Malia Cohen
mentioned a number, like 5,000 units in the
reservoir.

So, just because you say what would be
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the impact of so many people doesn’t mean you are
going to build up to that amount. So, we should

preserve the option of having more units.

I-T.Randolph-1 (cont.)

And we should also use the site as a --
you know, goes to reduce car travel. If people
-- when I went to City College, I biked to school
every day. And if the students are having to
drive there that means our region is not
investing enough in public transit. We need to
be building more bus lanes. But that’s not -- we
should have an express bus from the outer

Richmond to City College. But that’s not part of

the EIR for this project. All right, thank you.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank vyou. Next
speaker, please.

MS. BARISH: Good afternoon. My name 1is |
Jean Barish. Thank you very much for giving me
the opportunity to speak this afternoon.

I'm a former CCSF faculty member and have

also practiced law for over 20 years, 1including

working on a number of cases involving CEQA. I'm

here to state my opposition to the project in
general and to highlight some of the many flaws
in the draft EIR.

I'"d 1like to show you a rendering of what

[-T.Randolph-2

|-Barrish1-1

[-Barrish1-2
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/
the project will look 1like if it has 1,550 units.

As you can see, this 1s an oversized project. It
would squeeze up to 1,550 units of housing,
mostly market rate, onto a parking lot adjoining
CCSF, and a quiet neighborhood of single-family
homes.

While 1t may be a developer’s field of
dreams, this project is an environmental
nightmare to the surrounding neighborhoods and to
City College. It will create traffic congestion,
transit issues, environmental problems galore,
convert public land into private property for
profiteering developers, and it will not meet the
growing need in San Francisco for affordable
housing.

There are numerous flaws in the draft
SEIR. I'"d like to highlight a few that are just
representative of the problem in this document.

In the initial study, Appendix B, of the
draft SEIR, these are just three examples of many
problems with the SEIR.

The study concluded that the project
would not create adverse shadow effects, despite
the fact that there would be new shadow on Unity

Plaza for over 25 percent of the year and there

N\
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would be significant shadow on Riordan High
School. No significant effect.

The initial study says there would be a
population increase of over 100 percent in the
plan area, but then concludes there would be no
significant cumulative population impacts because
this i1s just a tiny increase compared to the
total population of the City as a whole.

This is a flawed apples and oranges
comparison and should not be accepted.

Finally, another example, the initial
study, Appendix B, concludes the project would
not result in cumulative impacts on public
services, yet it did not analyze the impacts of
the project on City College. Again, the draft
SEIR review of this impact is inadequate.

In these and in many other areas the
draft SEIR offers no objective criteria to serve
as a basis for determining that the impacts
aren’t less than significant.

Accordingly, it is a flawed document that
must be revised before it is submitted for final
review. Thank you for your consideration.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next

speaker, please.
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MS. O’HARE: Good afternoon
Commissioners. My name is Amy O’'Hare. I'm the
Sunnyside representative on the Balboa Reservoir
Community Advisory Committee. I'm also on the
Board of Sunnyside Neighborhood Association, and
I'm speaking for the Board today.

I want to address a particular aspect of
the environmental report and that is Alternative
C. That’s opening San Ramon Way to vehicular
traffic.

I want to urge the Planning Department to
support this alternative. As currently planned,
there are only two openings for vehicular traffic
in and out of the reservoir sites. By opening
San Ramon Way, a third access point would be
provided, mitigating some of the locked in nature
of the site.

When AECOM did the initial transportation
analysis, in 2015, they conclude: Extending San
Ramon Way would reduce local traffic bottleneck
into the neighborhood. The extension would
attract a portion of the Reservoir site traffic
and it can be accommodated without resulting in
substantial negative impacts on the existing

neighborhood.
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The draft SEIR states that opening San
Ramon Way to vehicles would redistribute traffic
from Ocean Avenue and Frida Kahlo Way, where it
would otherwise contribute to the transit delay.
Opening San Ramon Way would provide emergency
vehicles better access.

Further, it would reduce project-
generated traffic volume at Lee Avenue, which is
identified in the draft report as a troublesome
intersection with a lot of projected congestion.

In 1917, Westwood Park laid out several
stub-ended streets. It was laid out with several
stub-end streets, including San Ramon.

In 1986, Westwood Park Association
successfully blocked the opening of the one of
the east -- the west side of Westwood Park and so
that’s just a solid wall. And on the other side
of that is the El1 Dorado development, which
happened in the 80s.

The original planners fully envisioned
that these stubs would be connecting up with new
streets as future residential development
happened in the surrounding neighborhoods.

Connecting San Ramon Way to the Balboa

Reservoir Project would seem like an obvious part
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of effectively developing this site. But
apparently, the barrier to do so lies far in the
past.

I have a conveyance real estate, which
was Jjust provided to me by the assessor today,
which shows that in 1955 Westwood Park acquired a
very tiny slice of San Ramon Way, as a lot.

Which a lot was Jjust made up out of public
streets. And this is a barrier that’s right at
the edge of the Balboa Reservoir Project. And I
urge the Commission to override this ownership
that costs them $1.36.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you, ma’am,
your time 1is up.

MS. O’ HARE: Yeah, thank you.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: The next speaker,
please.

MR. BIERINGER: Good afternoon. Garry
Bieringer. I live within three blocks of this
proposed project area and have lived there for 40
years. I first found out about this project and
this meeting today when I was taking my dog for a
walk right where the project is to be built. And
I saw on these lamp posts, this kind of public

notice wrapped around. So, I tried to read it
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and looked a little bit goofy walking around and

around, because it really wasn’t readable to the

public. Finally, I was able to sense it’s from
the Planning Commission. I got a name and an
email. And I wrote Ms. Poling. I told her my

problem with this and asked, well, can I get more
information?

So, she directed me to the website. She

was very helpful. And I went down to the 2

Planning Commission and I picked up this book, or
this tome, as I call it. And as I read through
it, I started calling this the Balboa Housing
Boondoggle Project.

And I cannot separate the actual project
from this SEIR. It’s like they borrowed some
frumies -- some Sharpies from Donald Trump, drew
the lines to make their own reality, and ignored
the reality that the neighbors of this project
and the students of City College are going to be
facing.

One example. The draft SEIR fails to
include the City College multi-use building as a
sensitive receptor, which I think is a euphemism
for young kids, okay.

The multi-use building is 150 feet from
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the construction site and is used for childcare
classes, for children and classes on the site.

The short term measurement location
information in the SEIR, which is on page 3,
section C.9, notes that, and I guote from the
DEIR: The college campuses are generally not
considered a noise-sensitive receptor.

The MUB has been used for childcare
classes, for children on site for years and will
continue to be used that way. Therefore, it
qualifies as a noise-sensitive receptor. And the
DEIR completely ignores that, as they ignore the
impact to City College, and the impact on Riordan
College.

This is public land. It should be used
for the public. I strongly urge you accept
alternative A, which is to do nothing and start
back at the drawing board to build affordable
housing for teachers and students.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you, sir.

MR. BIERINGER: Thank you.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Next speaker,
please.

MS. HEGGIE: Hello. My name’s Jennifer

Heggie. I'"'m from Sunnyside and representing the
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Balboa Reservoir Committee for the SNA.

First, I want to thank the Planning
Department for this SEIR. It identifies many of
our concerns that are issues that cannot be
mitigated, including noise, transportation, and
air quality. My focus today is going to be on :
noise.

Noise effects on residents and childcare
centers in adjacent Sunnyside have been ignored,
although they are located within the 900-foot
zone of the project noise considerations. Two
childcare centers and preschools were identified
in the EIR, in this east side of the project.

The sensitive receptors are closer to
parts of the development than the studied 24-hour
LT.3 location in Westwood Park. And Sunnyside
sites lie in an area that is typically downwind
of the construction site.

Like many childcare or nursery schools in

the area, the Staples and Frida Kahlo Way -- I’'ve
forgotten the name of the mini location. It’s

for children. Serves as a residence, as well as
childcare center and preschool center. It needs

a 24-hour noise study.

Additionally, we suggest noise testing at ]
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the corner of Judson and Frida Kahlo Way,
formerly Phelan Avenue, where a replacement City
College daycare center is planned for the future.

The first mitigation measure for noise
recommends selecting truck haul routes that,
quote: Avoid the north access road and adjacent
Riordan High School and residential uses along
Lee Avenue.

But there is only one alternative route,
Lee Avenue to Ocean Avenue, which is also
adjacent to a sensitive receptor, the Harmony
Family Childcare. A high school, nursery schools
and daycare centers are located at or near all of
the identified possible entrances and exit site
points.

The Lee Avenue alternative 1is already
identified in the Cumulative Transportation Items
4 and 6.B, as a route that poses significant and
unavoidable adverse impacts to transportation and
circulation, even after mitigation.

Mitigation measure for Noise Number 1
would only exacerbate another unmitigatable
project issue. The first mitigation of the
report also recommends undertaking the noisiest

activities during times of least disturbance to
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surrounding residents and occupants, which are I-Heggie1-4 (cont)
identified as 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. This
coincides with the period when daycare centers
and nursery schools are in session. Riordan High
School holds classes and afterschool activities.
And the majority of City College classes,
including child development classes in the multi-

use building, are in session.

The times of least disturbance need to be

redefined. 1
SECRETARY IONIN: Thank you, ma’am. Your
time 1is up.
MS. HEGGIE: Thank vyou.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Next speaker,

please.

MS. HANSON: Thank you for your time. My-WHammﬂ4
name’s Christine Hanson. And I don’t know if you
can see this, but the cars in this lot -- I don'’t

think you’re showing the picture. I"1l1l just do
my comment, then.

The administrative record and the draft
SEIR has little information about the pressure
that City agencies have exerted upon the creation
of City College’s Facilities Master Plan. The

meetings, ongoing today, began during the time of
\
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the state takeover of the school. City agencies
began meeting then with the state-imposed
administration. The administrative record in the
draft SEIR makes a very slim mention of those
meetings.

A public records search in 2017 showed
that by then at least 17 of these private
meetings had occurred, mostly at SF Planning. It
was news to the board of trustees, and news to
Trustee Davila, who sits on the Balboa Reservoir
CAC, representing City College.

Kitchell, City College’s facility
planners, whose work is included in this SEIR,
answers to the question: What is the appropriate
place for city agencies to address the Facilities
Master Plan was; in public comment.

If you take the administrative record
presented in the draft SEIR at face value, you
would get the impression that this, indeed, has
been the behavior of city agencies. But this 1is
not what the collection of emails, agendas,
meetings, and notes surrounding these meetings
show. The agendas for those meetings are mostly
similar, with the top item being the City College

Facilities Master Plan.
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Your planner, Jeremy Shaw, even attended
one of the consultant job interviews on June 8th,
2015, with the blessing of a former state-
appointed facilities head at City College. The
Facilities Master Plan has been upgraded twice
and rebooted once. The intrusion of city
agencies into a plan that should have been
focused on the school’s Education Master Plan and
focused on the needs of students has, instead,
been formed around a private development that has
literally cost the taxpayers millions in bond
money.

The collection will be forwarded to you
as written public comment. Thank vyou.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. The

next speaker, please.

MS. RHINE: Hello. My name 1is Marcie
Rhine. And I just wanted to say a couple guick
things. I wasn’t going to talk, but I was so

moved by what the City College students had to
offer that I wanted to just underscore that I
think there is a very critical flaw in this draft
EIR that it does not address City College either
as a part of the overall setting, or as a vital

public service.

/
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This is a school that has been a part of
the l1life of the City for generations. It’s
trained people for essential jobs and public
services, provided enrichment to countless people
through lifelong learning. And to not consider
it, consider the impact seems to me a serious
flaw that should be reexamined.

The second thing I wanted to address 1is
there’s a lot of talk about affordable housing.
So, I just wanted to put out a couple of figures
for your consideration. If you look at the
development plan, the request is for 18 percent
affordable housing for people who are making 80
percent of the area median income, and that would
be $66,500 a year.

Then, an additional 17 percent for
moderate income. That’s 120 percent over the
AMT . We’re talking $99,500 a year. And then,
you get to 50 percent with an additional,
optional moderate income housing and that
additional housing is -- there’s no
responsibility for the developer to build it and
there’s currently no funding in the plan.

So, I know this is about the EIR and not

[-Rhine-2

I-Rhine-3

the project itself, but I just wanted you to have \
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those figures that the actual affordable housing
that will be gotten from giving away this public
land to a private developer 1is less than one-
fifth. So, and of course, the biggest cost in
building housing is the land. If the public land
were not given away, it could all be affordable.
So, Jjust to think about that. Thank you very
much.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next

speaker.

MS. TIMA: Thank you for your invitation.
My name is Etta Tima. I'’'m a resident for 48
years and at times old age helps to understand
something. I live on Plymouth Avenue. I view
the parking lot every morning. It is full. And
it is necessary. And it should remain because
during Ed Lee's time, he said he wanted to put
another 100,000 people into the County of San
Francisco.

Now, I'm asking you, where should they
find education? If you reduce the parking space,
this at this moment presents 4 percent of the
student body. That i1s not very much.

In regards to the history of this lot, I

was really disenchanted that your SEIR was
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showing such a lousy picture to mislead
everybody. That’s a sales pitch. Can you
imagine if you have 1,200 units right at the
entrance of freeway 280, and that will not solve
apartments for San Francisco. They will all go
down to Silicon Valley.

I asked the developer, could he put
restrictions on it and he denied my request. He
said that would not be possible.

If you are building 1,200 units on an
earthgquake fault, and I'm sure you know because I
have expressed this before, the earthguake fault
runs right through City College, and Riordan High
School, and Wildwood.

Then, you need emergency water in case we
have an earthquake to kill the fires. There 1is
no emergency water supply for the west and south
area of San Francisco. Would you please get busy
before you start building and get that done?

I'm against building any 1,200 units.
And in regards to building, the shaking of the

construction element way above the viability

demands of construction. And my house is old and
I do not want to have cracks in my stucco. Thank
you.
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VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next

speaker, please.

MR. AHRENS: Good afternoon. My name 1is
Michael Ahrens. I am President of the Westwood
Park Association, Homeowners Association. I am

also a member of the Balboa Citizens Advisory
Committee, sometimes called the CAC. And thank
you for hearing our comments.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
the Westwood Park Association, the neighborhood
that i1is most affected by this whole development,
I'm glad to tell you I will be brief. We will
put our comments on the DSEIR in writing.

But I will say this that the DSEIR 1is
severely flawed and we will tell you why in
writing.

I will outline, now, only a series of
some of the flaws, and you’ve heard some of the
hints of these things from other speakers
tonight. First, we will discuss the failure of
the DSEIR to accurately address the cumulative
secondary parking impacts caused by the loss of
existing parking, including the impacts on
transit, Lyft and Uber drivers.

Second, we will discuss the failure to
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properly take into consideration the cumulative
transportation impacts of the projected increase
in City College enrollment. There’s an increase,
as the DSEIR correctly notes, by I think 26 to 56
percent over the next few years, and it fails to
take that into consideration.

Next, the DSEIR fails to mention that
City College has an agreement and will undertake
to have 500 units of student housing developed on
what’s called the East Basin. That is not taken
into consideration.

In addition, the consideration of the
building of the PAEC, and the STEAM building, 1is
going to go on simultaneously and the DSEIR does
not take into consideration the tremendous
environmental problems caused by a simultaneous
construction on the East Basin and the West
Basin, which will result in virtually no parking
remaining.

Next, there is an extreme error in the
DSEIR in discussing Reduced Density Alternative B
in stating that no financial analysis has been
conducted. That’s false and we will show why.

Next, there is the improper inclusion of

Alternative C on San Ramon Way, on Passenger
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Vehicle Alternative. That should be rejected and
we will say why. That has to do with Plymouth

Avenue and others.

O-WPA1-5 (cont.)

And last, the rejection by the Planning -OMPALG

Department of the use of the site for City
College as an alternative was not appropriate.
Public land should not be used for anything but
public good.

Parties in the scoping process requested
that this alternative of using project land for
City College should be an alternative. The
Planning Department rejected that and that was
inappropriate under the law.

I only had two minutes. I tried to be
brief. Thank you very much. We will put the

rest of our comments in writing. Or, no, we will

put those comments in writing.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MR. KOWALSKI: Thank you. Kevin
Kowalski, a Westwood Park Association resident.
I live along Plymouth Avenue with my wife 18
years, between San Ramon and Ocean. I can attest

to the situation of the violence level due to the

parking and driving situation. \
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Westwood Park was built for Model T’s and
Model A's. Cars have to pull over all the time.
The violence level goes on all the time, day and
night.

I leave for work at 4:00 o’clock in the
morning. People are going at 40 miles per hour
on that street and they’re bypassing the stop
signs at San Ramon Way. They’re also running the
red light at Ocean Avenue and Plymouth Avenue.

I do not believe that the EIR takes into
account the death that will happen to City

College. City College needs different types of

things. Some of them may be buildings. Some of
them may be parking. Some of them may be an on
ramp to the freeway. It needs a lot of different
things. To not leads to the college animus.

And, thirdly, the environmental impact to
the neighborhood will be overwhelming. When they
rebuilt Ocean Avenue, they used right behind our
house, which abuts to the reservoir, as a dumping
ground for the concrete and asphalt. There were
over 70 filed complaints, with payoffs for
damages to homes, sewer lines, et cetera, et
cetera, et cetera.

Please reject this EIR. If you want one
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in reality and not the stylized facade this one
is, then have all the stakeholders participate in
creating one to see the truth of what’s going on
in this neighborhood. Thank you for your time.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MS. FREY: My name is Laura Frey,
Westwood Park. Thanks for your patience with all
these people.

Three main concerns. My first concern,
like a lot of people, is City College. I don’t
think the impact on City College has been really
addressed in this. And I want to remind the
Planning Department that the timing of the
development, the process began at the same time
that the accreditation crisis began. So, City
College, like Chris alluded to, was out of the
loop and never really caught up.

My second issue 1s density. This is a
downtown style project, without the downtown
style streets. And has Hedda mentioned, the
firefighting infrastructure, water pipes that
accommodate the dense housing in the other parts
of the City that have dense housing, their water

structure is totally different than what we have
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in this area. And that lack of firefighting
infrastructure would be a hazard to the residents
of the development itself, but it would also be a
hazard to all of the surrounding neighborhoods.

I'"ve gone to all the BRCAC meetings and
the Planning Department kept assuring us that the
parameters of the BRCAC would have a strong
bearing on the final plan. The density of this
project far exceeds the density that would have
been built i1if the parameters had been followed.

In the urban design parameters it stated
that the height would be 28 feet on the west and
then gradually go to 65 on the east. Now, it
starts out, I think, at 30, 35, something like
that, and then it jumps real guick, and then it
goes real high to 78 or 88 feet.

And then, my third concern is opening San
Ramon Way. In the DEIR it downplayed and, in
fact, it even said it was a positive that on
Plymouth, it’s basically one lane. The 1200
block of Plymouth, where I live, there’s always
parking cars on both streets, so it’s single
lane. So, you have to go into the driveways and
let people pass. And this happens all day. And

the driveways are small and if the car is big, or
61
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the driver isn’t such a good driver, it can take

a long time for people just to move down the

street. And sometimes people get upset.
Sometimes they get really nasty. Sometimes they
scream. Sometimes they just sit.

And the EIR just sort of really
downplayed this, that this would slow traffic.
Well, as a previous speaker said, that sometimes
people still go very fast on Plymouth and people
on Plymouth regard this situation as a negative,
not as a positive.

And then, just, I think the predictions
of the traffic through San Ramon 1s inaccurately
low because the EIR does not address that if that
San Ramon Way was opened you’d get other traffic
than just the project. Thank vyou.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MS. THEOHARIS: Good afternoon
Commissioners. Anita Theoharis, Westwood Park
Association Board Member on behalf of Westwood
Park.

I know that comments should be narrowly
focused on technical issues, but I do have one

nontechnical observation that does have relevance
62
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to one of our -- to one of the technical
objections to the sufficiency of the draft.

Our goal 1is to support a housing project
on the reservoir that includes affordable housing
for people of modest means. A project that
creates a new neighborhood with sufficient open
space and a welcoming environment for everyone.

A project with a number of units that can be
supported by the existing and planned
infrastructure. And one that does not damage a
crown jewel of the City, City College, or the
students who attend in the hopes of a better 1life
for themselves and their families. 1

It doesn’t accomplish these goals.
However, there was a proposal, submitted by
Related of California, a developer, during the
RFP process, a process that Westwood Park was
frozen out of by the Balboa Citizens Advisory
Committee. A project that could be one we could
support.

It brings me to the relevant objection.
The draft concludes that the financial
feasibility of a reduced option of 800 units

referred to as Plan B is unknown. That 1is

factually incorrect. \,
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Related proposed a 680-unit project, with
parking to accommodate City College. And in
discussions with Related, they said they could
reduce the number of units even further and still
make a profit.

Yet, this document ignores that real
world fact and concludes that the financial
feasibility option of 800 units is unknown, even
though a well-known and respected developer
concluded it could make a profit with far fewer
units.

The EIR must conclude that a reduced
density option is financially feasible and study
the impacts of that option.

We will submit in writing as well. And

thank you very much for your time.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MR. BERNSTEIN: My name 1is Harry
Bernstein. I'm a faculty member at City College.
So, I would like to provide some context to the
impacts indicated in the Subsequent EIR for the
Balboa Reservoir Project.

Noise, air quality and transportation

from the project will cause significant and
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unavoidable adverse impact. You hear those
words? Significant and unavoidable adverse
impact. Impacts on the college students, faculty
and staff, students at the adjacent Riordan High
School, and students in the childcare program at
the adjacent multi-use building.

So, these topics, noise, air quality, and
transportation came up before the Planning
Commission at their meeting in August. And this
was the context I want to mention. The mayor has
sought to streamline development, housing
development in San Francisco. And so, she 1is
trying to get a -- have several factors that are
considered in CEQA to reduce the required
mitigation. So, these, besides secondary ones
like cultural and paleontological, they include
noise, air guality, and transportation.

So, out of this 500-page report, the
serious issues are the one that the City 1is
trying to -- I don’t know if it’s put under the
rug, but not have to consider. They’ve already
done that with parking.

Okay, so that’s the way we’re going, just
to save some months, save some dollars, but to

give the public and the public health less
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opportunity, less consideration.

A separate topic. The description of the-
project setting baseline existing condition is
inadeguate. The primary use of the lower
reservoir, since 1946, has been parking. Today,
it’s spillover student parking. Except for the
years 1946 to 1954 and that was the time that the
college, 1itself, occupied the entire Balboa
Reservoir site. So, the college really has not :
-- the impacts on the college, the secondary
impacts from parking, not the parking itself
because that’s an issue that’s being considered
in other ways, but the impacts on the college,

and the access to education, which should have

some priority. Thank you. i

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next
speaker, please.

MR. NAGLE: Good afternoon Commission.
My name’s Nicholas Nagle. I'm representing the
San Francisco Housing Action Coalition. We’ve
been going to these meetings for years, so I’711
keep it short. I assume you know our position on
it.

We’ve been advocating for this project

because of our City’s housing shortage. And

\
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while no one project can solve the housing
shortage, this is a bit step towards it.

In terms of the EIR, we do find it to be
adequate and complete. And that’s all from me,
today. Thank vyou.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Next

speaker, please.

MR. WINSTON: Good evening Commissioners.

My name’s Jon Winston. I have the at large seat
on the Balboa Reservoir CAC and I'm also the
Chair.

I'm here this afternoon -- this evening,
I should say, to talk about transportation and
circulation. The impacts I believe will be
significant, but I disagree with the report that
they will be unmitigable.

Developer mitigation, including the
Transportation Demand Management Plan, including
measures like giving out a Fast Pass with rental
packages to encourage non-car use will play a
part. They will pay impact fees, which I believe
should be applied at the point of impact in the
neighborhood where the impacts actually occur.
That’s where they’re needed the most.

But also, the City can and must do more.
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Recent San Francisco history is full of projects,
like the Metreon Center, the San Francisco
Center, the ballpark, the Chase Center, all built
without parking and they were all predicted to
lead to traffic apocalypse.

But with moonshot level planning, by
multiple city agencies, we got great civic and
cultural amenities that, despite the naysayers,
worked.

This, too, is a project that needs to
have proactive planning on the neighborhood and
City level to accommodate the influx of new
residents in the reservoir and the projected
increase in CCSF students.

New housing and businesses, like Whole
Foods on Ocean Avenue, also add new car, foot and
bike traffic.

SFMTA and other agencies need to begin,
now, to be ready with increased transit frequency
and have more of the share of the roadway to
avoid even worse gridlock and in keeping with the
City’s transit first policy. That’s the first
time we’ve heard the words “transit first”
tonight.

In addition to my role on this CAC, I
68
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also serve as the Pedestrian Safety Advisor

Committee for the SFUSD. From that perch, I can

see Ocean, Geneva, San Jose Avenue as vision zero

high injury corridors. That means there have

been enough deaths and injuries, serious

injuries, due to the design of these streets that

they’re due and fundable for complete redesign.

In short, true transit first reimagining
of transportation and circulation for the
neighborhood is needed and it has to be
implemented.

At our September 30th CAC meeting, the
CAC will present their plans for their SFMTA
Ocean Avenue Safety Project. I hope to hear
about a safe, beautiful, and dignified walk to

BART, and better pedestrian bicycle access to

CCSF, the reservoir and the Ocean Avenue shopping

district.

But in future meetings, I really hope to
hear more about a comprehensive, proactive plan.
The Balboa Reservoir is really a great
opportunity to deal with the problems that have
accumulated over many, many years and now, we
have a chance to make the needed change to get a

livable, sustainable community for future
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generations. Thank you for your time.
VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: Thank you. Any
more speakers for public comment.

MR. BERNSTEIN: I'm sorry there was an

oversight for my comments. You have an empty lot

on the cover of this SEIR. I"d 1like to give
this, copies of this for the record and for the
members. If there a possibility to do that?

SECRETARY IONIN: Thank you. You can
just leave it right there.

MR. BERNSTEIN: Okay. And one of the
record, please.

SECRETARY IONIN: Anyone else for public
comment come on up.

UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: Rita Evans
dropped this off. She had to leave.

SECRETARY IONIN: Thank you. Anyone
else? Going once, public comment. Seeing none,
public comment is closed.

VICE PRESIDENT KOPPEL: We’re adjourned.

(The meeting concluded at 5:46 p.m.)
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therein stated; that the testimony of said
witnesses were reported by me, a notary public and
certified electronic court reporter and a
disinterested person, and was under my
supervision thereafter transcribed into

typewriting.

And I further certify that I am not of
counsel or attorney for either or any of the
parties to said hearing nor in any way
interested in the outcome of the

cause named in said caption.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,
I have hereunto set my hand this 2nd day of
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View of far end of Balboa Reservoir parking area at 9:30- out of
frame portion is full. Taken Aug 28 2017 by Otto Pippenger.

Reprinted with permission from City College’s newspapet, The
Guardsman: http://theguardsman.com/parking-crisis/
(hitp://theguardsman.com/parking-crisis/)




CCSF Guardsman: ‘Parking crisis raises Balboa Reservoir Project con... https://sunnysideassociation.wordpress.com/2017/09/26/guardsman-p...

moves forward over the next several years.” ' '

For more information, visit the Balboa Reservoir Community
Advisory Committee website. (http://sf-planning.org/balboa-
reservoir-cac-meeting-schedule)

View of far end of Balboa Reservoir parking area at 9:30- out of
frame portion is full. Taken Aug 28 2017 by Otto Pippenger.
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In an email, sent in late August to the Board of Trustees’ President
Thea Selby, Baum asked Selby to explain “how the housing project,
that might be built on the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) section
of the reservoir, could possibly serve the needs of CCSF’s students?”
Additionally, because many students must commute by car and use
the controversial section of the reservoir for parking, Baum asked if
Selby could “please explain how...any student [would] even be able
to afford to live in the housing being contemplated?”

o

oY cou_Lec;'@F SAN FRANCIECO
: =

PARKING FOR EMPLOYEES,
x;' STUDENTS, CCSF VISITORS
AND VENDORS ONLY

'PERMITS REQUIRED |

{ NO PARKING AFTER MIDNIGHT |

!
i
i
i
{

{

)

|

I VIOLATORS SUBJECT TO CITATION AND / OR
TOW PURSUANT TQ CWC 21113.A

! ENFORCEMENT BY SAN FRANCISCO
| COMMUNITY COLLEGE POLICE DEPARTMENT
: (415) 739-3200

A sign looms over cars in the lower parking
lot requiring permits to be purchased. Photo
taken Aug 28 2017 by Otto Pippenger.

With inquiries stretching as far as potentially using the land for the
voter approved Performing Educational Arts Center, Baum gave
voice to what many people from Ocean Campus have already been

talking about.

In response, Selby issued an email to the community on Aug. 24,
2017, which said, “City College is a vital partner to this project as it

40f 8 9/12/2019 11:08 AM
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Lower parking lot (Balboa Reservoir) at 11:30. Taken Aug 28 2017 by
Otto Pippenger.

The Guardsman’s observation took place over the course of several
weeks, and the research provided legitimacy to Professor Rick
Baum's fears that the project could “interfere with efforts to increase
student enrollment.”

https://sunnysideassociation.wordpress.com/2017/09/26/guardsman-p...

9/12/2019 11:08 AM
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Balboa Reservoir parking at 12:30 as classes get out. Taken Aug 28
2017 by Otto Pippenger.

September 13, 2017 The Guardsman
By Bethaney Lee

The Guardsman photographed the usage of the parking lot in
contention with the Balboa Reservoir Project (BRP) every hour on
Aug. 28, and concluded it was used consistently throughout the day.
It was highly impacted at peak class hours and the surrounding
neighborhoods and streets cannot support the amount of vehicles
displaced by the removal of the lower parking lot.

Tensions first arose after the BRP reported its goal was to repurpose
the lot into mixed-income level housing.

In October 2016, Nelson Nygaard released the Balboa Area
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan which was used
to identify transportation needs for the Balboa Park area. The report
identified limited roadway space, transit infrastructure and financial
resources as three primary problems.

“Yet despite the obvious fact that the elimination of student parking
and the addition of new Reservoir residents will increase demand
placed on limited transportation resources, the Balboa Reservoir
Project Team proposes no amelioration for adverse impacts other
than TDM,” Professor William McGuire said in an email sent in
early January 2017.
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Sunnyside Neighborhood Association

Building our community every day.

CCSF Guardsman: ‘Parking crisis
raises Balboa Reservoir
Project concerns’

ON SEPTEMBER 26, 2017SEPTEMBER 27,2017 / BY
SUNNYSIDE NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION / IN
BALBOA RESERVOIR PROJECT, CCSF, CITY COLLEGE OF
SAN FRANCISCO, PARKING, SF PLANNING DEPT, SEMTA,
UNCATEGORIZED

Reprinted with permission from City College’s newspaper, The
Guardsman: hitp://theguardsman.com/parking-crisis/
(http://theguardsman.com/parking-crisis/)

Parking crisis raises Balboa Reservoir
Project concerns

https://sunnysideassociation.wordpress.com/201 7/09/26/guardsman-p...

9/12/2019 11:08 AM



dees ot “'%c\/)% mffw
fe adbel wiage of Hos Locwer Roservorr
Sife  when Cily Clled s
Cinsdlr o Sl
nesspaper SOy Crom

Ww, 2.0(7



This was also submitted via Email and addressed in response to Comment I-EVANS2

F"eceWJ‘d at CPC Hearing '3 ‘.1
C1 Travel Demand Memorandum <Je

This section refers repeatedly to two sources for trip generation data. Oneis t e@ﬁtute of

Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 10" edition and the oth the San Francisco
Planning Trip Generation Workbook (SF Workbook). While the ITE Trip Generation Manual is indeed a
standard source, it also is recognized as a very flawed source of information due to its reliance on

datasets with very little input, generally from suburban, not urban, sources. We can’t even find the SF
Workbook and so are unable to determine whether it addresses any of those flaws or simply

compounds them. Can the Planning Department provide us with a copy of this workbook?

C2 Transit Assessment Memorandum

TRANSIT ASSESSMENT

Transit reentry delay analysis

Delay calculated based on empirical data from 2010 Highway Capacity Manual.

Data at least 15 years old was used instead of using 6™ edition of HCM published in 2016—why?

“The Highway Capacity Manual, Sixth Edition: A Guide for Multimodal Mobility Analysis (HCM)
provides methods for quantifying highway capacity. In its current form, it serves as a fundamental
reference on concepts, performance measures, and analysis techniques for evaluating the multimodal
operation of streets, highways, freeways, and off-street pathways. The Sixth Edition incorporates the
latest research on highway capacity, quality of service, and travel time reliability...

Given the use of an outdated HCM and its related data, we challenge the Kittleson conclusion that,
“Based on the findings from this corridor delay analysis, the project would not result in a substantial
delay to public transit along Frida Kahlo Way, Ocean Avenue, or Geneva Avenue.”

Passenger boarding delay analysis

What source was used to assume “two seconds per passenger boarding”? [s it again outdated data?
Does it include students and instructors carrying books, supplies, and other material? Does it include
students traveling with children? Residents carrying shopping bags or using a wheeled cart? Disabled
users?

City College Loop analysis

The consultant concludes that despite increases in traffic volume, no additional delay will be
generated. Consultant makes repeated reference to “existing signal timing coordination and
optimization.” As anyone who travels these corridors knows, having actuated signals and having those
signals actually work are two different things. Broken and mis-timed signals have plagued traffic on
Phelan/Frida Kahlo for years and the city has either ignored the problems or addressed them only
after years of complaints. What assurance do we have that any of this will change after the
development has been built?



SYogi
Typewriter
This was also submitted via Email and addressed in response to Comment I-EVANS2


This was also submitted via Email and addressed in response to Comment I-EVANS2

Received at CPC Hearingﬁyk&/_ﬂ
2018-007883ENV F‘)‘)

)
BALBOA RESERVOIR PROJECT - (Assessor’s Block 3180, Lot 190) D
Public Hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact Report
TRANSIT DELAY

The SEIR states that transit delay induced by the Balboa Reservoir project will be insignificant but this
conclusion is based on a completely arbitrary, unauthorized definition of delay on the part of the
consultants.

The MUNI on-time performance standard allows for a 4-minute delay for an entire route. The SEIR
instead allows for a 4-minute delay on any segment of a route (i.e., between two stops), a completely
invalid assumption, meaning almost no amount of delay would be considered significant.

EXAMPLE: The 43-Masonic travels from the Balboa Reservoir project site on Frida Kahlo Way to the
Balboa Park Station in 7 minutes. Using the consultants’ re-definition of transit delay, additional delays
of up to four minutes in just three segments, resulting in a travel time of 19 minutes, a 171% increase,
is somehow deemed “insignificant.” No one riding that 43 would find the delay to be insignificant.
And this utterly faulty reasoning is allowed to be presented in the SEIR as justification for a finding of
“insignificant delay,” meaning no mitigation is required.

From any perspective, whether legal, ethical or engineering, this is wrong. The SEIR is in error in using
this faulty, invalid method of determining transit delay. The transit delays as a result of this project will
be significant and appropriate mitigation must be identified before the SEIR is approved.
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2019-09-23 Balboa Reservoir DSEIR Comment Letter.pdf

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Good afternoon Ms. Poling,

Attached is a comment letter for the DSEIR for the Balboa Reservoir Project at Balboa Park Station.
For any questions regarding this letter, please contact Areana Flores, Environmental Planner, at

(415)749-4616 or by email at aflores@baagmd.gov

Thank you,

P —y/ AREANA FLORES
g/ ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNER

y Bay Area Air Quality Management District
y 375 Beale St. Suite 600 | San Francisco, CA 94105

[ > ) N 415-749-4616 | B4 aflores@baagmd.gov
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September 23, 2019

Jeanie Poling

Senior Planner

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Subject: Balboa Reservoir Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report
Dear Ms. Poling,

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (Air District) staff has reviewed the City
and County of San Francisco’s (City) Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact
Report (DSEIR) prepared for the Balboa Reservoir (Project). The Project applicant
proposes to develop the site with mixed-income housing, open space, a childcare
facility/community room available for public use, retail space, on-and-off street
parking, and new streets, utilities, and other infrastructure. There are two
potential buildout schedules for the Project: (1) the anticipated estimated 6-year
(2021-2027) schedule and (2) the compressed estimated 3-year (2021-2023)
schedule.

Air District staff greatly appreciates the opportunity to work with the City to
address the potentially significant air quality impacts estimated for this Project.
Project design features and the mitigation measures identified in the DSEIR will
substantially lessen the local and regional air quality impacts from construction
and operation of the Project.

However, even with these Project design features and on-site mitigation
measures, the DSEIR finds that air quality impacts from the Project still exceed the
City’s thresholds of significance for the compressed schedule. Therefore,
Mitigation Measure M-AQ-2d: Offset Construction Emissions for the Compressed
Schedule (M-AQ-2d) proposes that the Project applicant provide funds to achieve
additional emission reductions to reduce air emissions below the thresholds of
significance. To this end, M-AQ-2d states that the Project applicant would provide
funding to the Air District to fund emissions reduction projects in the region in
order to offset the remaining criteria pollutant emissions generated by
construction during the compressed schedule.

Please be aware that the Air District does not currently have a fee program for
offsetting emissions. These are occasionally conducted on a case-by-case basis
based on available projects. We recommend that M-AQ-2d replace “Air District”
with “governmental entity”. This will allow the project applicant to seek additional
options if the Air District has no available projects at the time.

375 BEALE STREET, SuiTe 600 « SAN FRANCISCO CA + 94105 « 415.771.6000 » www.baagmd.gov
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Air District staff is available to assist the City to address these comments. If you have any
questions, please contact Areana Flores, Environmental Planner, at (415) 749-4616 or
aflores@baagmd.gov.

Sincerely,

fr—————
Greg Nudd
Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer

cc: BAAQMD Director Gordon Mar
BAAQMD Director Shamann Walton
BAAQMD Director Tyrone Jue
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September 23, 2019

Jeanie Poling

Senior Planner

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Subject: Balboa Reservoir Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report
Dear Ms. Poling,

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (Air District) staff has reviewed the City
and County of San Francisco’s (City) Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact
Report (DSEIR) prepared for the Balboa Reservoir (Project). The Project applicant
proposes to develop the site with mixed-income housing, open space, a childcare
facility/community room available for public use, retail space, on-and-off street
parking, and new streets, utilities, and other infrastructure. There are two
potential buildout schedules for the Project: (1) the anticipated estimated 6-year
(2021-2027) schedule and (2) the compressed estimated 3-year (2021-2023)
schedule.

Air District staff greatly appreciates the opportunity to work with the City to
address the potentially significant air quality impacts estimated for this Project.
Project design features and the mitigation measures identified in the DSEIR will
substantially lessen the local and regional air quality impacts from construction
and operation of the Project.

However, even with these Project design features and on-site mitigation
measures, the DSEIR finds that air quality impacts from the Project still exceed the
City’s thresholds of significance for the compressed schedule. Therefore,
Mitigation Measure M-AQ-2d: Offset Construction Emissions for the Compressed
Schedule (M-AQ-2d) proposes that the Project applicant provide funds to achieve
additional emission reductions to reduce air emissions below the thresholds of
significance. To this end, M-AQ-2d states that the Project applicant would provide
funding to the Air District to fund emissions reduction projects in the region in
order to offset the remaining criteria pollutant emissions generated by
construction during the compressed schedule.

Please be aware that the Air District does not currently have a fee program for
offsetting emissions. These are occasionally conducted on a case-by-case basis
based on available projects. We recommend that M-AQ-2d replace “Air District”
with “governmental entity”. This will allow the project applicant to seek additional
options if the Air District has no available projects at the time.
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Air District staff is available to assist the City to address these comments. If you have any
questions, please contact Areana Flores, Environmental Planner, at (415) 749-4616 or
aflores@baagmd.gov.

Sincerely,

fr—————
Greg Nudd
Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer

cc: BAAQMD Director Gordon Mar
BAAQMD Director Shamann Walton
BAAQMD Director Tyrone Jue



STATE OF CALIFORNIA—CATIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY

Gavin Newsom, Governor

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
DISTRICT 4

OFFICE OF TRANSIT AND COMMUNITY PLANNING
P.O. BOX 23660, MS-10D

OAKLAND, CA 94623-0660

PHONE (510} 286-5528

Y 711

www.dot.ca.gov

September 10, 2019

Jeanie Poling, Senior Planner

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

A-Caltrans s

Making Conservation
a California Way of Life.

SCH #2018102028

GTS # 04-SF-2018-00287
GTS ID: 12934
SF-280-PM 1.75

Balboa Reservoir Project - Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (DSEIR)

Dear Jeanie Poling:

Thank you for including the California Department of Transportation (Calfrans) in
the environmental review process for the Balboa Reservoir Project. In tandem
with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) Sustainable
Communities Strategy (SCS), Caltrans' mission signals our continuing approach
to evaluate and mitigate impacts to the State’s multimodal transportation
network. Calfrans’ Strategic Management Plan 2015-2020 aims, in part, to
reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) and Greenhouse Gas emissions (GHG) in
alignment with state goals and policies. Our comments are based on the
August 7, 2019 Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (DSEIR).

Project Understanding

The proposed project would develop the site with mixed-income housing, open
space, a childcare facility/community room available for public use, retail
space, on- and off-street parking, and new streets, utilities, and other
infrastructure. This DSEIR will analyze two different sets of options for the site’s
residential density to capture a range of possible development on the project
site: The first is the Developer’s Proposed Option (1,100 dwelling units), proposed
by Reservoir Community Partners LLC. The second is the Additional Housing
Option (1,550 dwelling units), developed by the City of San Francisco to fulfill the
objectives of the San Francisco General Plan to maximize affordable housing

and housing in transit-rich neighborhoods.

Development under each of the two opftions would entail the same land uses
and street configurations, and similar site plans. Overall, the proposed project
would construct up to approximately 1.8 million gross square feet (gsf) of uses,

“Provide a safe, sustainable, integrated and efficient transportation
system to enhance California’s economy and livability”



Jeanie Poling, Senior Planner A-Caltrans
September 10, 2019
Page 2

including between approximately 1.3 and 1.5 million gsf of residential space
(1,100 to 1,550 dwelling units plus residential amenities), approximately 10,000 gsf
of community space (childcare and a community room for public use),
approximately 7,500 gsf of retail, up to 550 residential parking spaces and 750
public parking spaces in the Developer’s Proposed Option, and up to 650
residential parking spaces (with no public parking spaces) in the Additional
Housing Option. The buildings would range in height from 25 to 78 feet in the
Developer’'s Proposed Option and from 25 to 88 feet in the Additional Housing
Option.

Approximately 4 acres would be devoted to publicly accessible open space
under each opftion. Also, under each option, the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission would retain ownership of an 80-foot-wide sirip of land located
along the southern edge of the site where an underground water fransmission
pipeline is located. Regional access is provided from the Interstate (I-) 280 and
Ocean Avenue interchange approximately 0.35 miles east of the project site.

Bicycle Considerations

The Caltrans District 4 Bike Plan identifies a “Top Tier” project at the 1-280 and
Ocean Avenue/Geneva Avenue interchange that would reconstruct the
interchange ramps and stripe Class Il buffered bike lanes. Given the anticipated
increase in vehicle and bicycle traffic at this location due to the project, the
project should evaluate measures to enhance bicycle safety at freeway on-
and off-ramps at this location.

Construction-Related Impacts

Potential impacts to the 1-280 from project-related temporary access points
should be analyzed. Project work that requires movement of oversized or
excessive load vehicles on state roadways requires a fransportation permit that
is issued by Caltrans. To apply, visit: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/iraffic-
operations/transportation-permits.

Coordination
As the project progress, please keep Caltrans informed of any updates with the
project, including but not limited to alternative selection and scope changes.

Lead Agency

As the Lead Agency, the City of San Francisco is responsible for all project
mitigation, including any needed improvements to the State Transportation
Network. The project’s fair share contribution, financing, scheduling,
implementation responsibilities and lead agency monitoring should be fully
discussed for all proposed mitigation measures.

“Provide a safe, sustainable, integrated and efficient transportation
system to enhance California’s economy and livability”
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Jeanie Poling, Senior Planner A-Caltrans

September 10, 2019
Page 3

Thank you again for including Caltrans in the environmental review process.
Should you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact Andrew
Chan at 510-622-543 or andrew.chan@dot.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

ahida Rashid

Acting District Branch Chief
Local Development - Intergovernmental Review

c: State Clearinghouse

“Provide a safe, sustainable, integrated and efficient transportation
system to enhance California’s economy and livability”
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A-SCH

<& of Play,

\ \\‘”’#
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ‘ %

5 )
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research ! ” g
) . . o >
State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit 7% or e ¥
Gavin Newsom Kate Gordon
Governor Director

September 23, 2019

Jeanie Poling

San Francisco, City and County of
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94103-2749

Subject: Balboa Reservoir Project
SCH#: 2018102028

Dear Jeanie Poling:
The State Clearinghouse submitted the above named SBE to selected state agencies for review. The review 1
period closed on 9/20/2019, and the comments from the responding agency (ies) is (are) available on the
CEQA database for your retrieval and use. If this comment package is not in order, please notify the State
Clearinghouse immediately. Please refer to the project’s ten-digit State Clearinghouse number in future
correspondence so that we may respond promptly.

Please note that Section 21104(c) of the California Public Resources Code states that:

“A responsible or other public agency shall only make substantive comments regarding those
activities involved-iaprojeet-which-are-within-an-areaofexpertiseefthelagency or which are
required to be carried out or approved by the agency. Those comments shall be supported by
specific documentation.”

Check the CEQA database for submitted comments for use in preparing your final environmental
document: https://ceqanet.opr.ca.gov/2018102028/2 . Should you need more information or clarification
of the comments, we recommend that you contact the commenting agency directly.

This letter acknowledges that you have complied with the State Clearinghouse review requirements for
draft environmental documents, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act. Please contact the
State Clearinghouse at (916) 445-0613 if you have any questions regarding the environmental review

process.
Sincerely,

/
Scott Morgan

Director, State Clearinghouse

cc: Resources Agency

1400 TENTH STREET P.O.BOX 3044 SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95812-3044
TEL 1-916-445-0613  state.clearinghouse@opr.ca.gov www.opr.ca.gov
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I-Ali

From: Amna Ali

To: CPC.BalboaReservoir; Haneystaff (BOS)
Subject: Comment on SEIR for Balboa Reservoir Project
Date: Wednesday, September 18, 2019 6:13:31 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Planning Department and Supervisor Matt Haney (whose district | reside in),
| am a librarian at City College of San Francisco and am deeply opposed to the use being 1
proposed for the Balboa Reservoir land owned by SFPUC but leased to City College for many
years. City College will be negatively impacted by this development, the brunt being borne by
students from whom parking would be taken away and disruption caused due to construction
activities. San Francisco is already suffering at the hands of construction of luxury housing
masquerading as affordable housing, disrupting our lives and taking away resources utilized by
needy San Franciscans. Please do not add to skyrocketing costs of living in the city and the
fact that so called affordable housing is completely out of the reach of so many families and
students in particular. Why are private developers given so much room to decide what
belongs in our city?

| would request that the PUC place the needs of City College above those of a private 2
developer. It should either continue to lease the land to City College or transfer it for once
and all to City College to make use of according to principles of equity and relevance for the

college community.

| would be extremely grateful for your kind attention to this matter.
Sincerely

Amna Ali

Librarian - City College of San Francisco


mailto:anali@ccsf.edu
mailto:CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.org
mailto:haneystaff@sfgov.org
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From: Lisa Anderson

To: CPC.BalboaReservoir

Subject: Please support the balboa project

Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 10:55:48 AM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

We need housing. There should be 5000 units on this lot.
-Lisa Anderson

46 San Jacinto way
Sfca 94127


mailto:lisawanderson57@gmail.com
mailto:CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.org
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Regeived at CPC Hearing jhg [,ﬂ

To: San Francisco Planning Commission
From: Jean Barish(:g':zj:.D
Date: September 12, 2019

Subject: Case No. 2018-007883ENV
Balboa Reservoir Project
Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report

Following are Public Comments regarding the referenced Project:
Good afternoon President Melgar and Commissioners.

My name is Jean Barish. I'm a former CCSF Faculty Member, teaching Anatomy, Physiology, 1
and Health Education. | have also practiced law for over 20 years.

I am here to state my opposition to the Project,|and to highlight some of the flaws in the Draft T 9
Subsequent EIR. (Att 1)

This oversized project could squeeze up to 1,550 units of housing, mostly market rate, onto a
parking lot adjoining CCSF and a quiet neighborhood of single-family homes. (Att 1)

While it may be a developer's Field of Dreams, the project is a nightmare to the surrounding
neighborhoods and to City College.

It will create congestion, transit problems, lack of access to CCSF, and many other
environmental problems. It will also convert public land, currently owned by the SF PUC and
used by CCSF for decades, into private property for profiteering developers. And it will not meet
the growing need in San Francisco for affordable housing.

Coalition of San Francisco Neighborhoods, Westwood Park Neighborhood Association, and T 3
other groups have signed Resolutions opposing this project. Hundreds of people have signed
petitions and letters. | hope you will pay attention to their concemns.

| urge the Commission to consider reducing the project to one that is about 400 units, such as T 4
illustrated in this drawing. (Att 2)

And now for a few specific flaws in the DSEIR.

1) The DSEIR Initial Study eliminated many environmental impacts for review by concluding 5
they were not potentially significant. But these conclusions are flawed. The Study concluded
that the project would not create adverse shadow effects, despite the fact that there would be
new shadow on Unity Plaza for over 25% of the year, and there would be significant shadow on
Riordan High School.

2) The Initial Study says there would be a population increase of over 100% in the plan area, T 6
but concludes there would be no significant cumulative population impact because this is a tiny
increase compared to the population of the City as a whole. This is a flawed apples and oranges
comparison, and should not be accepted.

e bl el et e — s e b 1 DU
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3) Finally, the Initial Study concludes the project would not result in cumulative impacts on T 7

public services. Yet it did not analyze the impacts of the project on City College. Again, the
DSEIR review of this impact is inadequate.

In these and many other areas, the DSEIR offers no objective criteria to serve as a basis for |
determining that the impacts are not significant. Accordingly, the it is a flawed document that
must be revised before it is submitted for final review.

In conclusion, | hope you agree this Field of Dreams should be replaced with a scaled-down, T 9

environmentally sound, 100% affordable project with no significant environmental impacts.

Thank you.

L
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T-Neighborhoodd =

COALITION FOR SAN FRANCISCO NEIGHBORHOODS RESOLUTION
REGARDING BALBOA RESERVOIR
Whereas, the SF Public Utilities Commission, in ciose cooperation with various San Francisco
agencies, is proceeding with plans 10 build a private housing development on public land
currently owned by the SF Public Utilities Commission (the “Development™); and;

Whereas, this Development is iocated on the section of the Balboa Reservoir that City Coliege
ofSanancésco{“CCSF”)hasknpmvedandteasedmnmePUCfordecaaesand;

Whereas, public tand should remain in public hands for the public good and;

Whereas, this Development would provide mainly market rate. not affordabie. housing
and;

"

Whereas, this Development would eliminate parking with no corresponding improvement of
transit aiternatives, thereby limiting access for students who do not have other viable
options;and;

mmus,cmmmofmismvebpmemomwde!aymmevwcmp&eﬁonofmeGCSF
Performing Arts and Education Center (the “PAEC"} approved by voters in 2001 and 2005 bond
measures and;

e bR it Kb i e 2 d e+ b s e lene e

Whereas, San Francisco public agencies must abide with State Surpius Land Statute 54222,
which requires that any local agency disposing of surplus land shall send, prior to disposing of
that property. a written offer t¢ seli or iease the property _ . - 10 any school district in whose
jurisdiction the land is jocated and;

Whereas, this Development woulid have significant environmental impacts in the surrounding
area and;

Be it resolved, the Coalition for San Francisco Neighborhoods (CSFN) asks the SF PUC to
transfer this public property to City College of San Francisco and furtharmore,

Be it resolved, the CSFN urges the CCSF Board of Trustees to exercise their right as a public
institution to ask the SF PUC to transfer this public property to CCSF so as to keep it forever in
public hands for the public good and furthermore;

Be it resolved, the CSFN urges the CCSF Board of Trustees to remain wigiant to ensure that
the PAEC be built before any development on the Balboa Reservoir goes forward and
furthermore:

Be it resolved, in the event that the transfer of titie to the property 10 CCSF does not take
piace, and the Development is pursued, the CSFN urges the CCSF Board of Trustees to remain
vigilant to ensure that any loss of parking be mitigated before any development on the Balboa
Reservoir goes forward so as not to limit the educational access of any student.

George Wooding, Presigent, CSFN
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From: Jean Barish

To: CPC.BalboaReservoir

Subject: Case No. 2018-007883ENV Balboa Reservoir Project Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report
Date: Monday, September 23, 2019 6:50:37 AM

Attachments: JB DSEIR Comment Letter.docx

Alternative Architect Drawing [1].pdf

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Attached is a comment letter for the Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact
Report for the Balboa Reservoir Project, Case No. 2018-007883ENV. Also attached is
a drawing of a feasible alternative project that the Final SEIR should consider.
Please file both of these documents with the record of this case.

Please confirm receipt of these documents by return email.
Thank you for your consideration of these comments.

Jean

Jean B Barish, Esq., MS
jeanbbarish@hotmail.com
415-752-0185


mailto:jeanbbarish@hotmail.com
mailto:CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.org





SF Planning Dept., Attn. J. Poling, Case No. 2018-007883ENV

Balboa Reservoir Project, DSEIR Comments





JEAN B BARISH

5758 Geary Boulevard, Suite 341

San Francisco, CA 94121

jeanbbarish@hotmail.com             415-752-0185



							September 20, 2019

Via Electronic Mail



San Francisco Planning Department

Attn:  Jeanie Poling, Senior Planner

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.Org





Re: 	Case No. 2018-007883ENV

	Balboa Reservoir Project

	Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report		



Dear Ms. Poling: 



I am writing in response to the Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (“DSEIR”) for the Balboa Reservoir Project (the “Project”) referenced above. 



After reviewing the DSEIR it is clear there will be many significant environmental impacts to that cannot be mitigated if this project is approved. Additionally, the DSEIR is flawed because it fails to consider numerous environmental impacts that should have been considered.



Following are my questions and comments regarding this DSEIR.



Definitions

“Substantial Evidence,” as used in this letter, shall mean:  “enough relevant information and reasonable inferences from this information that a fair argument can be made to support a conclusion, even though other conclusions might also be reached.” (14 Cal Code Regs Sec. 15384(a) )  “Substantial evidence includes facts, reasonable assumptions predicated upon facts, and expert opinion supported by facts.” (14 Cal Code Regs Sec. 15384 (b) )  “ Argument, speculation, unsubstantiated opinion or narrative, or evidence that is clearly inaccurate or erroneous, or evidence that is not credible, shall not constitute substantial evidence.” (14 Cal Code Regs. Sec 15064(f)(5) ) 

“Feasible Alternatives”, as used in this letter, shall mean: “capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into account economic, environmental, social, and technological factors.”  (Public Resources Code section 21061.1; 14 CCR section 15364)



BALBOA PARK AREA PLAN

This DSEIR is a project-level EIR that is tiered from a previously certified program-level EIR (“PEIR”)



The Project is a portion or sub-set of the Balboa Park Station Area Plan (the “Plan”). To better understand some of the defects with the DSEIR, it is important to refer to the Plan and several of its Objectives and Policies.  (http://generalplan.sfplanning.org/Balboa_Park_Station.htm#BPS_HSG)



Policy 1.4.2 states: If the PUC should decide that the west basin is not needed for water storage, it should consider facilitating the development of a mixed-use residential neighborhood on part of the site to address the city-wide demand for housing. The development on the site should recognize the opportunity to knit the surrounding neighborhoods together through the creation of a community open space and pedestrian connections.



Policy 1.4.2, therefore, states that at best, only part of the west basin would be used for housing. The development of a project with up to 1,550 units goes far beyond partial development of the reservoir.  It should be scaled back to be compliant.



Policy 4.4.1 states:  “If the PUC should decide that the west basin is not needed for water storage, it should consider development of a mixed-use residential neighborhood on part of the site to address the city-wide demand for housing. Affordable housing should be considered a high priority per Policy 4.5.1.” 



and



Policy 4.5.1 states:  “…Where publicly-owned parcels are being developed, . . . city policy directs that surplus public property be considered for development of affordable housing. Thus, when offering their land for development, first consideration should be given by these agencies to the development of housing affordable to individuals or families making less than 120 percent of the area median income.

Since the Project only requires the developer to provide less than 1/3 affordable units, it is not compliant with the Plan policies. This must be considered when the Final SEIR (“FSEIR”) is prepared.



Policy 6.4.1 states: Regardless of scale, new development should add to the district’s character, create a human scale public realm, and fit within the city’s traditional fabric; regardless of architectural style. Larger-scale development efforts must take great care to not overwhelm the scale of the area and to positively establish a pedestrian-scale pattern. Urban design guidelines have been developed for the plan area and compliance with the guidelines is mandatory.



The Project is massive and out of scale with the surrounding neighborhoods. It will have buildings up to 8 stories high, casting shadows on public open space and Archbishop Riordan High School. It will dwarf the single family homes surrounding it, and it will remove open space that is used by City College of San Francisco (“City College”) for both parking and recreational purposes. A Feasible Alternative must be considered.



In view of the foregoing, the Project is not in accord with the Plan and needs to be revised accordingly.



INITIAL STUDY – APPENDIX B

Introduction



Balboa Park Station Area Plan (p. B-3)

The area plan’s land use map designates the site’s land use as P (Public), and the height map indicates a 40-foot height limit (Maps 3 and 6). However, the Project will include buildings up to 78 feet in the Developer’s Proposed Option and up to 88 feet in the Additional Housing Option. (B-4) The FSEIR must provide substantial evidence explaining why this increase in height limit will not have an unanticipated and significant environmental impact.



The Accountable Planning Initiative  (p. B-5)

Under Proposition M,  planning policies must include conservation and protection of existing housing and neighborhood character (B-5). The DSEIR fails to discuss how the will impact neighborhood character. In accordance with Proposition M, the FSEIR must provide substantial evidence explaining this analysis.   

 

[bookmark: _Hlk19046977]Effects Found Not to be Potentially Significant (p. B-10)

In some cases, the Initial Study identified mitigation measures in CEQA topic areas that would reduce potentially significant impacts to a less-than-significant level, supporting the conclusion that these topic areas do not need CEQA review under this SEIR. 

The Initial Study found that the only effects found to be potentially significant in the Project were Transportation and Circulation; Noise; and Air Quality. All other potential individual and cumulative environmental effects considered in the PEIR were found to be either less than significant or would be reduced to a less-than-significant level through recommended mitigation measures in the DSEIR. These impacts that are not studied in this DSEIR are: Land use and land use planning; Population and housing; Cultural resources; Tribal cultural; resources; Greenhouse gas emissions; Wind; Shadow; Utilities and service systems; Public services;   Biological resources; Geology and soils; Hydrology and water quality; Hazards and hazardous materials; Mineral resources; Energy; Agricultural and forestry resources; Wildfire.



However, for the reasons set forth below, the basis for these determinations are flawed. The effects below should, in fact, be analyzed in this DSEIR.



Land Use Impacts

Impact LU-2: No conflict with applicable land use plans  (p. B-14)  

According to this section, the proposed project would require rezoning to permit structures up to 88 feet tall.  It would appear, therefore, that any significant land use conflict can simply be mitigated by rezoning the land. This appears to be an abuse of legislative discretion. The FEIR must consider the appropriateness of this rezoning option. 



Impact C-LU-1: The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable future projects, would not result in significant cumulative impacts to land use. (Less than Significant)

(p. B-15)  



There is no objective data to support this conclusion. Rather, the DSEIR simply states that in combination with reasonably foreseeable future projects, the Project would have less-than-significant cumulative land use impacts. But absent a quantitative analysis of all the CEQA environmental impacts, it is improper to reach such a conclusion. The FSEIR must provide substantial evidence to support its conclusion. Absent an analysis of the substantial evidence, the FSEIR will be insufficient.



Population and Housing Impacts

Impact C-PH-1  The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable future projects, would not result in significant cumulative population and housing impacts. (Less than Significant)  (p. B-21)  

The Developer’s Proposed Option and Additional Housing Option would increase the onsite residential populations by 2,530 and 3,565 respectively. Compared to the increase in population analyzed in  the PEIR or 1,150 residents (Table 1, p. B-19) this is an increase of over 100% in the plan area. Yet, despite this significant increase in population compared to the PEIR, the DSEIR concludes it is not significant. It justifies this decision by saying it would not be substantial for the City as a whole. While that may be true, it improperly fails to consider the impact on the immediate neighborhood. The FEIR must thoroughly analyze this population increase within the Area Plan, not within the entire City. 



Shadow Impacts

Impact  SH-1  The proposed project would not create shadow that substantially and adversely affects the use and enjoyment of publicly accessible open spaces (Less than Significant) (p. B-46)

The DSEIR states that there would be new shadow between May 1 and August 15 (B-47-50). Fig. 3 illustrates this new shadow. These are the warmer, drier summer months, when people are more likely to be outside closer to sunrise and sunset.  Yet, despite any objective measure of significance and any substantial evidence, the DSEIR states that any new shadow would not be significant. The FSEIR must provide substantial evidence that such an increase in shadow is not significant.  



Impact C-SH-l  The proposed project . . . would not result in cumulatively considerable impacts related to shadow.  (Less than Significant)  (p. B-50)

The DSEIR discloses that the project would cast new shadow on the athletic field at Archbishop Riordan High School Athletic Field. (p. 51) But it appears this shadow is not subject to CEQA analysis since it is not a publicly accessible open space. That, however, is a technicality which should not justify disregarding this significant shadow impact on a high school adjacent to the project. The FSEIR should evaluate and determine if the shadow on Archbishop Riordan High School’s Athletic Field is a significant environmental impact.



Utilities and Service Systems Impacts

Impact UT-1  Sufficient water supplies are available to serve the proposed project … unless the Bay Delta Plan Amendment is implemented…Impacts related to new or expanded water supply facilities cannot be identified at this time or implemented in the near term . . . (Less than Significant) (p. B-59)

According to the DSEIR, page B-57, SFPUC Resolution 02-0084 determined that there was sufficient water supply to serve expected development projects in San Francisco through the year 2020, and the implementation of the Area Plan was not expected to have any substantial impact on water supply. Since the Project will not be completed until approximately 2027, it appears this projection is obsolete. Please explain.

Further, in the Conclusion on page B-73, the DSEIR states that there is too much uncertainty related to the possible implementation of the Bay-Delta Plan Amendment to identify environmental effects, and such effects are, therefore, speculative at this time. Please explain how an informed decision regarding the availability of an adequate water supply for the Project can be determined in view of these uncertainties, and why, in view of these uncertainties, the DSEIR states the environmental impact is less than significant.

Further, according to a September 22, 2019 article in the San Francisco Examiner, a recent civil grand jury report, “Act Now Before It Is Too Late: Aggressively Expand and Enhance Our High-Pressure Emergency Firefighting Water System,” raised the alarm about the lack of coverage for western San Francisco neighborhoods.  According to the report, The City’s high-pressure emergency water supply system “does not cover large parts of Supervisorial Districts 1, 4, 7 and 11, roughly one-third of the City’s developed area,”  the report said. “As a result, these districts are not adequately protected from fires after a major earthquake.” (https://www.sfexaminer.com/news/report-large-parts-of-sf-not-adequately-protected-from-fires-after-major-earthquake/?fbclid=IwAR145KV4GH_CNfBJvCogj0bPF__iAYdlgyWcrmV5PyZkhjN995GTKpG6AOc)  

The Project is in D 7. In view of the  grand jury’s report, the DSEIR is inadequate for not reviewing the environmental impact of building a massive development on a reservoir that could serve the area in case of an emergency. The DSEIR must provide substantial evidence that covering the Balboa Reservoir will not significantly impact Utilities and Service Systems.



Public Services Impacts – Failure to Consider Impact on City College of San Francisco (“City College”)



Impact C-PS-1: The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable future projects, would not result in cumulative impacts on public services. (Less than Significant)



By way of the Initial Study, the DSEIR offhandedly dismisses impacts on City College. The Initial Study fails entirely to address the impact on student attendance and enrollment and on part-time Instructors who have to travel between multiple community college sites.

The Initial Study cites City College’s TDM/Sustainability Plan’s goal to reduce car travel as justification for the less-than-significant conclusion of the Project’s impact on City College. The Initial Study states:  The City College sustainability plan has a performance objective to reduce automobile trips, with which the removal of parking at the project site would not conflict.

. . .

Thus, the proposed project would not – in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives – be expected to increase demand for public services to the extent that would require new or physically altered public facilities, the construction of which could result in significant environmental impacts, and the proposed project would not result in new or substantially more-severe impacts than those identified in the PEIR.  

This is incorrect. Removing parking would clearly increase demand for public services in the form of, among others, demand for increased public transit, demand for more TNC’s, and demand for alternative parking in other areas of the City College campus. For the reasons set forth in the review below of the Kittelson TDM, DSEIR Appendix C, there are no effective mitigations proposed for the loss of parking due to this Project.  

City College is the central educational, economic, and cultural focus of the neighborhood.  Its interests cannot be allowed to be made secondary to the Project.



City College’s educational mission makes it a target destination for students, staff, faculty.  This simple fact needs to be recognized as being desirable, even if CCSF students need to drive to school and need parking.



The Project must take responsibility for mitigation of its own significant cumulative impacts on City College, traffic and parking.  The burden of mitigation should not be shifted onto City College and neighborhoods. 

 

Current Reservoir student parking is an existing physical condition. This physical reality cannot be ignored. Removal of student parking will have significant impact on student enrollment and attendance.



The proposed "solutions"  to circulation, parking, and congestion problems be simply based on wishful thinking and "creative solutions".  Conjecture and hope is not a solution for student access to education.



The substantial impact on City College’s educational mission must be comprehensively and objectively examined in the DSEIR.  The omission of this examination renders the DSEIR and Initial Study inadequate.



DSEIR

The following flaws in the DSEIR must be considered.



Figures in DSEIR

Figures 2-1 through 2-8; Figures 2-9 through 2-12; Figure 2-16; Figures 2-18 through 2-21; Figure 3.B-4; Figures 5-1 through 5-4; Figure 6-1; and Figure 6-2  are inadequate and incorrect. They do not show the alterations to the Upper Lot, where the CCSF Multi Use Building is located, that are included in the Facilities Master Plan, approved by the CCSF Board of Trustees in March, 2018, and the subsequent Plan that was presented to the Board of Trustees for consideration of a San Francisco Bond Measure. Table 3.A-2 describes the New Facilities planned for this area. (P. 3,A-13). Accordingly, these Figures are all misleading and do not accurately represent buildings on the  land adjoining the proposed project. The FSEIR must use accurate, updated Figures.



Chapter 2, Project Description

Size of the Balboa Park Reservoir Project

According to 2.D.1, the area plan PEIR estimated the area plan would result in a net increase of 1.780 residential units, and that as of Sept., 2018, 273 units have been built and excluding the Balboa Reservoir project, an addition 209 units are planned. (P. 2-6) Therefore, of the 1,780 total number of units, 482 are already accounted for, leaving 1,295 units as the maximum number that could be built at the Balboa Reservoir and still comply with the PEIR. Yet the DSEIR considers one option that would have 1,550 units, 255 more than allowed in the PEIR. A Balboa Reservoir project with more than 1,298 units, therefore, would be inconsistent with the PEIR, and should not be permitted.



Project Overview, 2.A

The DSEIR does not conform to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 15125 (a) and (c).

According to the DSEIR, p. 2-1: The proposed Balboa Reservoir Project is located on a 17.6-acre site in the West of Twin Peaks area of south central San Francisco (see Figure 2-1, Location Map). The site is north of the Ocean Avenue commercial district, west of the City College of San Francisco Ocean Campus, east of the Westwood Park neighborhood, and south of Archbishop Riordan High School. The project site is owned by the City and County of San Francisco (City) under the jurisdiction of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC).

This Project Overview is inadequate, and does not conform to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 15125 (a) which states:  An EIR must include a description of the physical environmental conditions in the vicinity of the project. This environmental setting will normally constitute the baseline physical conditions by which a lead agency determines whether an impact is significant. . . . The purpose of this requirement is to give the public and decision makers the most accurate and understandable picture practically possible of the project's likely near-term and long-term impacts. 

City College, Archbishop Riordan High School, and Lick Wilmerding High School are all large institutions in the vicinity of the Project. But the DSEIR does not always consider impacts of the Project on these institutions.  Accordingly, the DSEIR is inadequate and must be revised to comprehensively review all the environmental impacts on these locations.

Further, Antioch v. Pittsburg (1986) 187 Cal. App. 3d 1325  (http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/cases/1986/antioch_121686.html)

Stands for the proposition that an EIR must consider cumulative impacts on future projects. CCSF is planning to do additional construction on the upper parking lot adjacent to the Project, namely a Performing Arts Education Center and a STEAM building.  But the DSEIR failed to consider the impact of the Project on this future construction. The FSEIR must review and evaluate this impact.

Further, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 15125 (c) states:  Knowledge of the regional setting is critical to the assessment of environmental impacts. Special emphasis should be placed on environmental resources that are rare or unique to that region and would be affected by the project. The EIR must demonstrate that the significant environmental impacts of the proposed project were adequately investigated and discussed and it must permit the significant effects of the project to be considered in the full environmental context.

City College is a unique educational institution that provides services for tens of thousands of students daily, and employment for many more thousands. It is the only Community College in San Francisco, with a long and storied history of serving the entire City of San Francisco. There is no question that the Project will impact City College. The DSEIR is inadequate since it fails to comprehensively consider the environmental impacts of the Project on City College. The FSEIR must rigorously review all the substantial environmental impacts on City College in accordance with CEQA. Failure to do so would result in a flawed and inadequate FSEIR. 



Approach to Cumulative Impact Analysis  (p. 3.A-8)

The DSEIR states:  At the time of this DSEIR preparation, the project description detail for the facilities master plan projects for the Ocean Campus is limited, City College may change those projects or their details depending on funding availability, and City College has not conducted CEQA analysis for those projects. Therefore, the cumulative analysis for this SEIR will qualitatively assess the impacts of these Ocean Campus projects identified in Table 3.A-2 collectively as the “City College Facilities Master Plan” using best available information at the time of this SEIR preparation.  (P. 3.A-14)



An analysis based on “best available information” is inadequate. CEQA reviews should not be based on speculation, but on quantifiable, objective data. The fact that the City College FMP is ambiguous and uncertain at this time raises serious questions about the validity of any conclusions about Cumulative Impact Analyses.





3.B  Transportation and Circulation

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan (-p. 3B-38)

The Project will significantly impact transportation and traffic in the neighborhood. The EIR must include a comprehensive traffic study of trip generation and parking supply, and evaluate the indirect and cumulative impact of the Project on transportation and traffic impacts on the people living in and traveling to both the Project as well as City College of San Francisco. The DSEIR must also consider these substantial impacts on lower income students who likely reside further away and must use automobiles. This study must also include the impact of increased traffic on congestion and parking in the neighborhoods impacted by the Project, and propose feasible alternative to these impacts.



The Notice of Preparation states that:  “The proposed project would include a transportation demand management (TDM) program that would implement measures to reduce vehicle trips and encourage sustainable modes of transportation. TDM measures may include both physical (e.g., bicycle and carshare parking) and programmatic (e.g., incentives).”  (Oct. 10, 2018 NOP, p. 20)  



In a December 31, 2017, memo to the Commissioners of the SF County Transportation Authority, Supervisor Norman Yee stated:  ”The TDM Framework is a first step in planning TDM efforts for the Balboa Area. As the Reservoir developer and City College begin to draft implementable plans, community input will continue to play a significant role. Transportation and TDM will be discussed in ongoing public meetings for the City College Facilities Master Plan, Balboa Reservoir and other Community Advisory Committees. Only after further public engagement and exploration of TDM programs will the Reservoir developer and City College draft more detailed, implementable TDM plans.” 



Accordingly, the FSEIR must include a completed TDM. A Final SEIR should not be circulated until this completed TDM has been incorporated into the FSEIR.



Project travel demand refers to the number, type, and common destinations of new trips that

people would take to and from the project. The memorandum containing the detailed methodology and results for the project travel demand is included in DSEIR Appendix C1, Travel Demand Memorandum. 



The TDM Plan that was submitted by Kittelson in Appendix C1 is incomplete.  It is a survey of trip generation and parking, but there is no analysis of alternative sources of travel or transit use. This omission is unacceptable. A complete and competent TDM Plan must be included in the FSEIR. Failure to do so would result in an inadequate EIR which should not be certified.

Additionally, for the reasons set forth herewith, the Kittleson report is flawed, and does not provide a competent basis for transportation mitigation:



· The Kittelson TDM does not engage with important current transportation characteristics in the project area which would likely be impacted and transformed by the scale and intensity of the proposed development alternatives.       



· The report indicates that the trip generation manual being employed is somewhat out of date but the most recent available.   



· Recent academic studies in the last year have observed that there has been a very substantial increase in trips and congestion over the past two Years. They estimate that 40% of this increased congestion may be estimated to be attributed to Lyft and Uber car service trips. In the mode choice allocations the report models car service trips are treated as a small segment, less than 10%?     



· Even if one estimates that car service trips are both a mode choice switch and a cause of changing traffic through increased trip generation... there are no level of service discussions LOS for morning and afternoon peaks and for off peak mid day... for the main streets serving the project. What is traffic like and what might be the impacts of increased trips on the level of service in the project area and on adjacent arteriales serving the project area. And how might one assess the cumulative transportation impacts of this project and planned development adjacent to the project area?     



· The expected distribution of trips for residents seems very light for peak period travel. Is there any current transportation trip generation and travel diary data that might be employed to validate the time of day assumptions for residents of the new development?     



· The current assumptions for residents are quite variant from the conceptual estimate of student trips that might be estimated from the parking lot driveway analysis... where we see a high density of trips around the morning and afternoon peaks. If the apartment dwellers trip characteristics more clearly follow the patterning of student car trips there may be serious congestion and LOS impacts. How might you assess this possible outcome? Particularly where you don’t provide LOS data for main circulation routes.     



· There is an aerial analysis of parking lot volumes by time of day. But there is no assessment of the current on-street parking supply. It is known from other campuses and from parking lots serving rail transit like Bart and Cal Train or from light rail in other cities that campuses and large developments  put pressure on parking supply, particularly when TOD seeks to provide less parking to support alternative mode choice and to lower development costs. The scoping section has no assessments of the interactive impacts of the college, new apartments and regional parking supply/demand on neighborhood parking conditions post-Development.     







Public Transit Delay (p. 3.B – 51 et seq)

There are significant and unavoidable cumulative transit impacts identified by the DSEIR. 

Impact C-TR-4: The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable

future projects, may result in a potentially significant cumulative impact related to

public transit delay and the project could contribute considerably. (Significant and

Unavoidable with Mitigation)

Impact C-TR-6b: Operation of the proposed project, including proposed street network

changes, in combination with reasonably foreseeable future projects, would impact

existing passenger and freight loading zones along Lee Avenue between Ocean Avenue

and the project site, and may create potentially hazardous conditions for people

bicycling and may substantially delay public transit. (Significant and Unavoidable)

The DSEIR also states:

Impact TR-4:    Operation of the proposed project would not substantially delay public

transit. (Less than Significant)

However, the DSEIR’s determination of less-than-significant impact on transit delay (TR-4) is not based on the standard of substantial evidence. 



The City Charter/SFMTA late criterion is a 4 minute delay relative to the MUNI schedule. 

In comparison, the Reservoir late standard as applied for the segment from Monterey/Gennessee to Balboa Park Station allows for a 12 minute delay relative to MUNI schedule.   

The DSEIR appropriates a 4-minute delay standard for the each of the 43’s segments (Judson-Ocean and Ocean-Geneva/San Jose) in the BPS Area, thus the DSEIR reinterprets the MUNI 4-minute lateness standard to allow the Project itself to independently contribute an additional 4 minutes of transit delay before the Project's impact "might" be considered significant. This is an invalid, flawed analysis of acceptable transit delays. The FSEIR must recalculate transit delays validly.

Allowance of a 4-minute Reservoir-related Transit Delay threshold of significance would also violate the City’s Transit First Policy.



NOVEMBER 12, 2018 SCOPING LETTER

Included in this letter as Attachment 1 is the November 12, 2018 Scoping Letter submitted for this Project. Many of these issues were not addressed in the DSEIR. These comments should all be addressed during the preparation of the FSEIR.





ADDITIONAL COMMENTS



[bookmark: _GoBack]The following additional comments regarding the DSEIR are submitted for your consideration. 



The DSEIR must consider the option of using this public land to build 100% affordable housing



The DSEIR states the need to “Develop the reservoir in a manner that will best benefit the neighborhood, the city, and the region as a whole.



San Francisco is woefully behind in creation of affordable housing, and yet, this DSEIR does not study or offer the option of dedicating this publicly owned property to affordable housing only. It does not even consider the recommended option of its own PEIR of 500 housing units for the lower Balboa Reservoir dedicated to those earning less than 120 percent of median area income. 



Instead it accepts the premise of creating market rate housing in order to obtain affordable housing without exploring possible funding for a greater number of affordable units, without the market rate housing—which would be have a smaller environmental impact to the areas already identified: noise, air quality and transportation. 



One of the greatest obstacles to building affordable housing is the price of land. In San Francisco this obstacle is even more formidable than in other areas of the country. The City of San Francisco already owns this parcel, so why is the City of San Francisco planning to sell public land that it already owns to a private developer that will build mostly market rate housing in a neighborhood where affordable housing makes more sense? 



Policy 4.5.1 in the Balbo Park Station Area Plan says that when offering public land for development, first consideration should be given by these agencies to the development of housing affordable to individuals or families making less than 120 percent of the area median income.



The DSEIR is inadequate because it fails to consider the impacts on the public service of City College of San Francisco. 

The Reservoir Project will have an adverse impact on higher public educational services offered by City College. According to a City College Ocean Campus Survey of City College students and workers conducted in May 2016, 45.7% commuted by car. Inside Higher Ed reported on a survey that detailed Community College students’ challenges. The researcher said, “The biggest surprise we had was parking [rated at #5]. This is a big issue for them because of personal schedules or work schedules.” 

Hence, the elimination of over 1,000 student parking spaces by the Reservoir development without first putting viable alternatives into place will limit students’ access to higher education services offered by City College.

 The impact on gig-working part-time Instructors who have to travel between multiple community college sites must also be considered. 

The DSEIR says: "… it would be speculative to conclude that the loss of parking would lead to substantial adverse impacts..." and concludes that loss of parking for City College would be "less than significant, and no mitigation measures are necessary." Yet the DSEIR itself relies on the speculation that "likely, the shortfall in parking supply would cause some drivers to shift to another mode of travel, others to rearrange their schedule to travel at other times of day..." It avoids assessing the possibility that students might not be able to continue attending City College.

The DSEIR notes that the City College TDM/Sustainability Plan has a performance objective to reduce automobile trips, with which the removal of parking at the project site would not conflict. This is a moot point. Just because the DSEIR does not conflict with the TDM/Sustainability Plan does not mean the project has no impact on the public service of City College. There is no evidence that TDM would resolve the effects of lost student parking on student access to higher education. 

Although New Public Resources Code Section 21099 exempts parking adequacy as a CEQA impact, it does not exempt the secondary impact on City College’s ability to provide public higher educational services. It is erroneous to extend 21099's parking exemption onto the elimination of the public benefit of providing access to higher education. 

The Reservoir Project’s elimination of the baseline environmental setting of the 1,000-space student parking lot without first ensuring viable alternatives will have the undesirable effect of limiting students’ access to higher education services offered by City College.



The DSEIR must consider the impact of increasing the number of units from the original recommendation in the PEIR



The Reservoir Project’s two options are for 1,100 units and for 1,550 units.  The Balboa Park Station PEIR’s Housing option for the Reservoir referred to 425-500 units. From the 425-500 units indicated in the PEIR to the 1,100-1,550 units indicated in the Draft SEIR constitutes an increase of 109.9% to 264.7% over and above the Balboa Park Station PEIR.



The increased number of units between the BPS Program EIR to the Reservoir Subsequent EIR constitutes “substantial unplanned growth.”





The DSEIR must consider the impact of market-rate units in working-class neighborhoods



The Draft SEIR also does not consider or compare the potential for gentrification impacts to the residents of the Ingleside, the neighborhood located across Ocean Avenue from the proposed development. A development solely devoted to affordable housing would better blend with the residents of this working class neighborhood. The proposed development of mostly market rate units leaves these residents vulnerable to displacement due to gentrification. The adjacent neighborhood, Excelsior, is also a working class neighborhood vulnerable to displacement due to gentrification.





The DSEIR must consider the possibility of using this public land to build dedicated educator housing 



Since approval of the PEIR the City of San Francisco has also identified a great need for housing dedicated to educators. The lower Balboa Reservoir is surrounded by schools whose teachers would be able to walk to work if they lived there. 





The DSEIR must consider the impact of the change of zoning 



The proposed zoning change from P (Public) to Reservoir Special Use District constitutes a qualitative change of land use from PUBLIC to PRIVATE.  This is being done under the aegis of “affordable housing” when, in reality, most of the units will be market-rate housing.





The DSEIR must consider the option of leaving open space

 

The Balboa Reservoir is currently open space that allows for vistas of the Pacific Ocean to the Farralones from the CCSF Science Building. The BPS Area Plan contains a Streets and Open Space Element. Why is this consideration left out?





The DSEIR must consider the impact of reduced parking without first putting viable transportation options in place



According to a CCSF Ocean Campus Survey of CCSF students and workers conducted in May 2016, 45.7% commuted by car. City College is a commuter school. 



The goal of increasing ridership levels on the nearby public transportation services is laudable but not realistic. Both MUNI and BART have problems with capacity. They have more riders than they can handle. Regular riders of the 43 and 29 will be able to recount stories of crowded conditions and being passed up by buses. New Reservoir residents will only aggravate unreliable service on public transit.



Although reducing car usage in general is a commendable goal, the Reservoir Project’s elimination of the baseline environmental setting of the 1,000-space student parking lot will have the undesirable effect of discouraging enrollment at City College.



The DSEIR must consider the impact of costs incurred to CCSF 



The proposed Reservoir development has forced City College to include in its Facilities Master Plan 2-3 new parking structures to make up for the loss of existing parking in the PUC Reservoir.  This secondary impact must be addressed.



The project has already cost the college. The original PAEC (Performing Arts Education Center) is going through a major re-design to accommodate the loss of parking.





The DSEIR must consider the option of leaving open space 



The BPSAP contains a Streets and Open Space Element. Why is this left out?





The DSEIR must consider the impact of creating a nuisance 



The Land Use Framework adopted by the Public Utilities Commission in 2012 (PUC Resolution 12-0044) states that Land may be sold or transferred when…. Use of the land sold is not to result in activities creating a nuisance.



Given the limited street parking in the surrounding neighborhoods, and the fact that the main ingress/egress to the Reservoir Housing project will be Kahlo Way, the 1100-1550 unit Balboa Reservoir Project will result in creating a substantial traffic and parking nuisance. 





Conclusion



The Balboa Reservoir Project will significantly impact City College of San Francisco and the surrounding neighborhoods. Your preparation of the Final Environmental Impact Report should assure that any project on this land will both benefit the community as well as not harm the environment or community.













Thank you for considering the foregoing issues.  Please continue to keep me informed by email of all documents and notices regarding this project.

 Sincerely,



Jean B Barish, Esq., MS

jeanbbarish@hotmail.com

415-752-0185



cc: 	San Francisco Board of Supervisors

	City College of San Francisco Board of Trustees

	San Francisco MTA Board of Directors

	San Francisco Planning Commission 

	San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

	San Francisco Office of Workforce and Economic Development
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JEAN B BARISH, Esq., MS

5758 Geary Boulevard, #341

San Francisco, CA 94121           jeanbbarish@hotmail.com







Via Electronic Mail 

November 12, 2018



Jeanie Poling
San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94103
 
Re:  	Balboa Reservoir Project

	EIR Case No. 2018-007883ENV

	Scoping Requests


Dear Ms. Poling:



Thank you for the opportunity to submit comments regarding the environmental review for the referenced project.  Following are requests for your consideration during the Environmental Impact Report process. 





Introduction



The proposed Balboa Reservoir Project (the “Project”) would be a large housing development built on approximately 17 acres of land adjoining City College of San Francisco, Riordan High School, the Westwood Park neighborhood, and Ocean Avenue. According to the Planning Department’s October 10, 2010 Notice of Preparation, this project could have up to 1,550 dwelling units. It will also include community space, retail space, and no more than 750 public parking spaces, almost half as many parking spaces now available. Buildings could be up to 88 feet tall.



Following are the Project impacts that should be studied in the Environmental Impact Report:



Transportation/Traffic Impacts



The Project will significantly impact transportation and traffic in the neighborhood. The EIR should include a comprehensive traffic study of trip generation and parking supply, and evaluate the indirect and cumulative impact of the Project on transportation and traffic impacts on the people living in and traveling to both the Project as well as City College of San Francisco. The EIR should consider these impacts on lower income students who likely reside further away and must use automobiles. This study should also include the impact of increased traffic on congestion and parking in the neighborhoods impacted by the Project.
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Transportation Demand Management - The Notice of Preparation states that:  “The proposed project would include a transportation demand management (TDM) program that would implement measures to reduce vehicle trips and encourage sustainable modes of transportation. TDM measures may include both physical (e.g., bicycle and carshare parking) and programmatic (e.g., incentives).”  (Oct. 10, 2018 NOP, p. 20)  



In a December 31, 2017, memo to the Commissioners of the SF County Transportation Authority Supervisor Norman Yee stated:  ”The TDM Framework is a first step in planning TDM efforts for the Balboa Area. As the Reservoir developer and City College begin to draft implementable plans, community input will continue to play a significant role. Transportation and TDM will be discussed in ongoing public meetings for the City College Facilities Master Plan, Balboa Reservoir and other Community Advisory Committees. Only after further public engagement and exploration of TDM programs will the Reservoir developer and City College draft more detailed, implementable TDM plans.” 



Accordingly, the EIR must include a completed TDM, and a Draft EIR should not be circulated until this completed TDM has been incorporated into the EIR.



MTA and BART Impacts - The Project will significantly alter the demand for public transit in the area. This is especially true since up to 1,500 student parking spaces may be lost. The EIR should study the following impacts on public transit:



· The impact of road changes on the reliability and frequency in the neighborhood of all bus and streetcar lines servicing the neighborhood

· The impact of increased demand on BART 

· The impact of changes proposed in the City College Facilities Master Plan on transit reliability and frequency 



Additional Impacts - The EIR should also study the following transportation and traffic impacts:



· The impact of the City College of San Francisco Facilities Master Plan on traffic and transportation in areas adjoining the Project

· The impact of the Project on increased traffic from ride sharing companies such as Uber and Lyft 

· The impact of the Project on access of emergency vehicles, such as fire trucks and ambulances, in the neighborhood

· The impact of the Project on pedestrian, bicycle, and other alternative modes of transportation

· The impact of the Project on traffic congestion in the neighborhood
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Community Resources  



Impact of Reduced Parking on CCSF - The Project will significantly reduce parking for City College of San Francisco students, faculty, and staff. Additionally, it is expected that parking

fees in a replacement parking structure will be more expensive. The EIR should study the impacts of this reduced parking and increased cost on:



· student enrollment at City College of San Francisco, especially the impact on lower income students 

· faculty employment at City College of San Francisco 

· staff employment at City College of San Francisco



Project Impact on the Performing Arts Education Center - City College of San Francisco is planning to construct a Performing Arts Education Center (PAEC) on property adjoining the Project. The EIR should study the impact of the Project on: 



· The commencement of the construction of the PAEC

· The completion of the construction of the PAEC   

· The location of the PAEC   

· The availability of parking for the PAEC



Additional impacts – The EIR should study the following additional impacts on community resources



· The impact of the Project on the City College of San Francisco Facilities Master Plan  

· The impact of increased retail on the Project site on retail businesses in the surrounding neighborhoods

· The impact of Project construction activities on the surrounding neighborhoods

· The impact of significantly increasing market-rate housing on the cost of housing in the adjoining neighborhoods, especially housing for minorities, low-income, elderly, disabled, transit-dependent and other interest groups

· The impact of a large, market-rate housing project on the character and stability of the surrounding neighborhoods





Hydrology and Water Quality – The EIR should study the following impacts on hydrology and water quality:

· The impact on the availability of potable water, especially during emergencies and natural disasters

· The impact on the availability of emergency water for fighting fires during natural disasters such as earthquakes 

· The impact of increased demand for water on the groundwater supply

· The impact of increased demand of stormwater runoff
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Cultural Resources



In 1995, Westwood Park became San Francisco’s only Residential Character District, providing the neighborhood with protection for its architectural integrity. The Project does not conform to the density or height of the neighborhood. The EIR should study how the Project will impact the 

character of the neighborhood, especially the Residential Character of Westwood Park and any other neighborhoods or homes that have an historical designation. 



Public Services - The EIR should study the following impacts on public services:

· The impact of the Project on the supply of water during an emergency such as an earthquake or fire

· The impact of the Project on enrollment at City College of San Francisco

· The impact of the Project on the availability of adequate access to K-12 education in the neighborhood

· The impact of the Project on the availability of adequate access to police, fire protection, public libraries, post offices, and other public services in the neighborhood



Air Quality – The EIR should study the following impacts on air quality:

· The impact of increased automobile traffic on air quality in the neighborhood

· The impact of construction on air quality in the neighborhood





Alternative Projects



Additional Housing Option - The Notice of Preparation identifies two options for the site’s residential density. One would have 1,100 units and the other would have 1,550 units. The 1,550 unit project, defined as the Additional Housing Option, was never considered by the Balboa Reservoir Project CAC, which met for approximately two years. Nor was it ever presented to the general public. It is unclear why a larger project was never publicly considered. In view of this lack of transparency and due process, the EIR should defer the review of this project until it has been fully reviewed by the CAC and other members of the public.  



The EIR should also study several alternative projects.



No Build Alternative -  The EIR should study a No Build Alternative. The EIR should review keeping the land under public or non-profit control rather than allowing a private development company to purchase it from the SF Public Utilities Commission for their personal gain. A No Build Alternative would allow the land to continue to be used for any number of public uses, including the expansion of City College of San Francisco, which has used the land for decades and which voters have consistently determined should be zoned Public. 
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Additionally, the impact of the No Build Alternative should be considered in light of the commitment of CCSF and the citizens of San Francisco to building a Performing Arts Education Center on land adjoining the Project site.    



Smaller Project – In view of the significant environmental impacts the Project will have, the EIR should also study reducing the number of units in the Project to no more than 400 and no more than 3 floors. A smaller project will be compatible with the surrounding neighborhoods, and will mitigate many environmental impacts, including but not limited to traffic congestion, infrastructure problems, and loss of enrollment at City College of San Francisco due to loss of parking and inadequate public transit.



Attached is an architect’s rendering of a proposed smaller project that the EIR should consider.



100% Affordable Housing – The need for affordable housing in San Francisco is undeniable. While there has been an increase in the construction of units in San Francisco, most of them are market rate units which are too expensive for the majority of the people living and working in San Francisco. 



The public land on which the Project will be built should be used to build a development that is 100% affordable. The October 10, 2018 Notice of Preparation addresses the importance of affordable housing, stating that the Balboa Park Station Area Plan should “prioritize affordable housing.” (NOP, p. 4)



The EIR should study building 100% affordable housing on the Project land.





Conclusion



The Balboa Reservoir Project will significantly impact City College of San Francisco and the surrounding neighborhoods. Your preparation of the Environmental Impact Report should assure that any project on this land will both benefit the community as well as not harm the environment or community.



Thank you for considering the foregoing issues.  Please continue to keep me informed by email of all documents and notices regarding this project.



Sincerely,



Jean B Barish, Esq., MS



Att  





2
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JEAN B BARISH
5758 Geary Boulevard, Suite 341
San Francisco, CA 94121
Jjeanbbarish@hotmail.com 415-752-0185

September 20, 2019

Via Electronic Mail

San Francisco Planning Department
Attn: Jeanie Poling, Senior Planner
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103
CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.Org

Re: Case No. 2018-007883ENV
Balboa Reservoir Project
Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report

Dear Ms. Poling:

| am writing in response to the Draft Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (“DSEIR”) for the
Balboa Reservoir Project (the “Project”) referenced above.

After reviewing the DSEIR it is clear there will be many significant environmental impacts to that T
cannot be mitigated if this project is approved. Additionally, the DSEIR is flawed because it fails
to consider numerous environmental impacts that should have been considered.

Following are my questions and comments regarding this DSEIR.
Definitions

“Substantial Evidence,” as used in this letter, shall mean: “enough relevant information and
reasonable inferences from this information that a fair argument can be made to support a
conclusion, even though other conclusions might also be reached.” (14 Cal Code Regs Sec.
15384(a) ) “Substantial evidence includes facts, reasonable assumptions predicated upon
facts, and expert opinion supported by facts.” (14 Cal Code Regs Sec. 15384 (b) ) “ Argument,
speculation, unsubstantiated opinion or narrative, or evidence that is clearly inaccurate or
erroneous, or evidence that is not credible, shall not constitute substantial evidence.” (14 Cal
Code Regs. Sec 15064(f)(5) )

“Feasible Alternatives”, as used in this letter, shall mean: “capable of being accomplished in a
successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into account economic,
environmental, social, and technological factors.” (Public Resources Code section 21061.1; 14
CCR section 15364) 1
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BALBOA PARK AREA PLAN

This DSEIR is a project-level EIR that is tiered from a previously certified program-level EIR
(“PEIR”)

The Project is a portion or sub-set of the Balboa Park Station Area Plan (the “Plan”). To better
understand some of the defects with the DSEIR, it is important to refer to the Plan and several
of its Objectives and Policies.

(http://generalplan.sfplanning.org/Balboa Park Station.htm#BPS HSG)

Policy 1.4.2 states: If the PUC should decide that the west basin is not needed for water
storage, it should consider facilitating the development of a mixed-use residential neighborhood
on part of the site to address the city-wide demand for housing. The development on the site
should recognize the opportunity to knit the surrounding neighborhoods together through the
creation of a community open space and pedestrian connections.

Policy 1.4.2, therefore, states that at best, only part of the west basin would be used for
housing. The development of a project with up to 1,550 units goes far beyond partial
development of the reservoir. It should be scaled back to be compliant.

Policy 4.4.1 states: “If the PUC should decide that the west basin is not needed for water
storage, it should consider development of a mixed-use residential neighborhood on part of the
site to address the city-wide demand for housing. Affordable housing should be considered a
high priority per Policy 4.5.1.”

and

Policy 4.5.1 states: “...Where publicly-owned parcels are being developed, . . . city policy
directs that surplus public property be considered for development of affordable housing. Thus,
when offering their land for development, first consideration should be given by these agencies
to the development of housing affordable to individuals or families making less than 120 percent
of the area median income.

Since the Project only requires the developer to provide less than 1/3 affordable units, it is not
compliant with the Plan policies. This must be considered when the Final SEIR (“FSEIR”) is
prepared.

Policy 6.4.1 states: Regardless of scale, new development should add to the district’s character,
create a human scale public realm, and fit within the city’s traditional fabric; regardless of
architectural style. Larger-scale development efforts must take great care to not overwhelm the
scale of the area and to positively establish a pedestrian-scale pattern. Urban design guidelines
have been developed for the plan area and compliance with the guidelines is mandatory.

The Project is massive and out of scale with the surrounding neighborhoods. It will have
buildings up to 8 stories high, casting shadows on public open space and Archbishop Riordan
High School. It will dwarf the single family homes surrounding it, and it will remove open space
that is used by City College of San Francisco (“City College”) for both parking and recreational
purposes. A Feasible Alternative must be considered.
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In view of the foregoing, the Project is not in accord with the Plan and needs to be revised 2 (cont.)
accordingly.

INITIAL STUDY — APPENDIX B

Introduction

Balboa Park Station Area Plan (p. B-3)

The area plan’s land use map designates the site’s land use as P (Public), and the height map
indicates a 40-foot height limit (Maps 3 and 6). However, the Project will include buildings up to
78 feet in the Developer’s Proposed Option and up to 88 feet in the Additional Housing Option.
(B-4) The FSEIR must provide substantial evidence explaining why this increase in height limit
will not have an unanticipated and significant environmental impact.

The Accountable Planning Initiative (p. B-5)

Under Proposition M, planning policies must include conservation and protection of existing
housing and neighborhood character (B-5). The DSEIR fails to discuss how the will impact
neighborhood character. In accordance with Proposition M, the FSEIR must provide substantial
evidence explaining this analysis.

Effects Found Not to be Potentially Significant (p. B-10) T

In some cases, the Initial Study identified mitigation measures in CEQA topic areas that would
reduce potentially significant impacts to a less-than-significant level, supporting the conclusion
that these topic areas do not need CEQA review under this SEIR.

The Initial Study found that the only effects found to be potentially significant in the Project were
Transportation and Circulation; Noise; and Air Quality. All other potential individual and
cumulative environmental effects considered in the PEIR were found to be either less than
significant or would be reduced to a less-than-significant level through recommended mitigation
measures in the DSEIR. These impacts that are not studied in this DSEIR are: Land use and
land use planning; Population and housing; Cultural resources; Tribal cultural; resources;
Greenhouse gas emissions; Wind; Shadow; Utilities and service systems; Public services;
Biological resources; Geology and soils; Hydrology and water quality; Hazards and hazardous
materials; Mineral resources; Energy; Agricultural and forestry resources; Wildfire.

However, for the reasons set forth below, the basis for these determinations are flawed. The
effects below should, in fact, be analyzed in this DSEIR.

Land Use Impacts

Impact LU-2: No conflict with applicable land use plans (p. B-14)

According to this section, the proposed project would require rezoning to permit structures up to
88 feet tall. It would appear, therefore, that any significant land use conflict can simply be
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mitigated by rezoning the land. This appears to be an abuse of legislative discretion. The FEIR
must consider the appropriateness of this rezoning option.

Impact C-LU-1: The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable future
projects, would not result in significant cumulative impacts to land use. (Less than Significant)
(p. B-15)

There is no objective data to support this conclusion. Rather, the DSEIR simply states that in
combination with reasonably foreseeable future projects, the Project would have less-than-
significant cumulative land use impacts. But absent a quantitative analysis of all the CEQA
environmental impacts, it is improper to reach such a conclusion. The FSEIR must provide
substantial evidence to support its conclusion. Absent an analysis of the substantial evidence,
the FSEIR will be insufficient.

Population and Housing Impacts

Impact C-PH-1 The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable future
projects, would not result in significant cumulative population and housing impacts. (Less than
Significant) (p. B-21)

The Developer’s Proposed Option and Additional Housing Option would increase the onsite
residential populations by 2,530 and 3,565 respectively. Compared to the increase in population
analyzed in the PEIR or 1,150 residents (Table 1, p. B-19) this is an increase of over 100% in
the plan area. Yet, despite this significant increase in population compared to the PEIR, the
DSEIR concludes it is not significant. It justifies this decision by saying it would not be
substantial for the City as a whole. While that may be true, it improperly fails to consider the
impact on the immediate neighborhood. The FEIR must thoroughly analyze this population
increase within the Area Plan, not within the entire City.

Shadow Impacts

Impact SH-1 The proposed project would not create shadow that substantially and adversely
affects the use and enjoyment of publicly accessible open spaces (Less than Significant) (p. B-
46)

The DSEIR states that there would be new shadow between May 1 and August 15 (B-47-50).
Fig. 3 illustrates this new shadow. These are the warmer, drier summer months, when people
are more likely to be outside closer to sunrise and sunset. Yet, despite any objective measure
of significance and any substantial evidence, the DSEIR states that any new shadow would not
be significant. The FSEIR must provide substantial evidence that such an increase in shadow is
not significant.

Impact C-SH-I The proposed project . . . would not result in cumulatively considerable impacts
related to shadow. (Less than Significant) (p. B-50)

6 (cont.)
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The DSEIR discloses that the project would cast new shadow on the athletic field at Archbishop
Riordan High School Athletic Field. (p. 51) But it appears this shadow is not subject to CEQA
analysis since it is not a publicly accessible open space. That, however, is a technicality which
should not justify disregarding this significant shadow impact on a high school adjacent to the
project. The FSEIR should evaluate and determine if the shadow on Archbishop Riordan High
School’s Athletic Field is a significant environmental impact.

Utilities and Service Systems Impacts

Impact UT-1 Sufficient water supplies are available to serve the proposed project ... unless the
Bay Delta Plan Amendment is implemented...Impacts related to new or expanded water supply
facilities cannot be identified at this time or implemented in the near term . . . (Less than
Significant) (p. B-59)

According to the DSEIR, page B-57, SFPUC Resolution 02-0084 determined that there was
sufficient water supply to serve expected development projects in San Francisco through the
year 2020, and the implementation of the Area Plan was not expected to have any substantial
impact on water supply. Since the Project will not be completed until approximately 2027, it
appears this projection is obsolete. Please explain.

Further, in the Conclusion on page B-73, the DSEIR states that there is too much uncertainty
related to the possible implementation of the Bay-Delta Plan Amendment to identify
environmental effects, and such effects are, therefore, speculative at this time. Please explain
how an informed decision regarding the availability of an adequate water supply for the Project
can be determined in view of these uncertainties, and why, in view of these uncertainties, the
DSEIR states the environmental impact is less than significant.

Further, according to a September 22, 2019 article in the San Francisco Examiner, a recent civil
grand jury report, “Act Now Before It Is Too Late: Aggressively Expand and Enhance Our High-
Pressure Emergency Firefighting Water System,” raised the alarm about the lack of coverage
for western San Francisco neighborhoods. According to the report, The City’s high-pressure
emergency water supply system “does not cover large parts of Supervisorial Districts 1, 4, 7 and
11, roughly one-third of the City’s developed area,” the report said. “As a result, these districts
are not adequately protected from fires after a major earthquake.”
(https://www.sfexaminer.com/news/report-large-parts-of-sf-not-adequately-protected-from-fires-
after-major-

earthquake/?fbclid=IwAR145KV4GH_ CNfBJvCogj0bPF __iAYdIgyWcrmV5PyZkhiN995GTKpG6
AOc)

The Projectis in D 7. In view of the grand jury’s report, the DSEIR is inadequate for not
reviewing the environmental impact of building a massive development on a reservoir that could
serve the area in case of an emergency. The DSEIR must provide substantial evidence that
covering the Balboa Reservoir will not significantly impact Utilities and Service Systems.

Public Services Impacts — Failure to Consider Impact on City College of San Francisco (“City

College”)

Impact C-PS-1: The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable future
projects, would not result in cumulative impacts on public services. (Less than Significant)

5
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By way of the Initial Study, the DSEIR offhandedly dismisses impacts on City College. The Initial
Study fails entirely to address the impact on student attendance and enrollment and on part-
time Instructors who have to travel between multiple community college sites.

The Initial Study cites City College’s TDM/Sustainability Plan’s goal to reduce car travel as
justification for the less-than-significant conclusion of the Project’s impact on City College. The
Initial Study states: The City College sustainability plan has a performance objective to reduce
automobile trips, with which the removal of parking at the project site would not confilict.

Thus, the proposed project would not — in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response
times, or other performance objectives — be expected to increase demand for public services to
the extent that would require new or physically altered public facilities, the construction of which
could result in significant environmental impacts, and the proposed project would not result in
new or substantially more-severe impacts than those identified in the PEIR.

This is incorrect. Removing parking would clearly increase demand for public services in the
form of, among others, demand for increased public transit, demand for more TNC’s, and
demand for alternative parking in other areas of the City College campus. For the reasons set
forth in the review below of the Kittelson TDM, DSEIR Appendix C, there are no effective
mitigations proposed for the loss of parking due to this Project. -

City College is the central educational, economic, and cultural focus of the neighborhood. Its
interests cannot be allowed to be made secondary to the Project.

City College’s educational mission makes it a target destination for students, staff, faculty. This
simple fact needs to be recognized as being desirable, even if CCSF students need to drive to
school and need parking.

The Project must take responsibility for mitigation of its own significant cumulative impacts on
City College, traffic and parking. The burden of mitigation should not be shifted onto City
College and neighborhoods. -

Current Reservoir student parking is an existing physical condition. This physical reality cannot
be ignored. Removal of student parking will have significant impact on student enrollmentand -
attendance.

The proposed "solutions" to circulation, parking, and congestion problems be simply based on
wishful thinking and "creative solutions". Conjecture and hope is not a solution for student
access to education.

The substantial impact on City College’s educational mission must be comprehensively and
objectively examined in the DSEIR. The omission of this examination renders the DSEIR and

17

Initial Study inadequate. 1

DSEIR

The following flaws in the DSEIR must be considered.
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Figures in DSEIR

Figures 2-1 through 2-8; Figures 2-9 through 2-12; Figure 2-16; Figures 2-18 through 2-21;
Figure 3.B-4; Figures 5-1 through 5-4; Figure 6-1; and Figure 6-2 are inadequate and incorrect.
They do not show the alterations to the Upper Lot, where the CCSF Multi Use Building is
located, that are included in the Facilities Master Plan, approved by the CCSF Board of
Trustees in March, 2018, and the subsequent Plan that was presented to the Board of Trustees
for consideration of a San Francisco Bond Measure. Table 3.A-2 describes the New Facilities
planned for this area. (P. 3,A-13). Accordingly, these Figures are all misleading and do not
accurately represent buildings on the land adjoining the proposed project. The FSEIR must use
accurate, updated Figures.

Chapter 2, Project Description

Size of the Balboa Park Reservoir Project

According to 2.D.1, the area plan PEIR estimated the area plan would result in a net increase of
1.780 residential units, and that as of Sept., 2018, 273 units have been built and excluding the
Balboa Reservoir project, an addition 209 units are planned. (P. 2-6) Therefore, of the 1,780
total number of units, 482 are already accounted for, leaving 1,295 units as the maximum
number that could be built at the Balboa Reservoir and still comply with the PEIR. Yet the
DSEIR considers one option that would have 1,550 units, 255 more than allowed in the PEIR. A
Balboa Reservoir project with more than 1,298 units, therefore, would be inconsistent with the
PEIR, and should not be permitted.

Project Overview, 2.A

The DSEIR does not conform to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 15125 (a) and (c).

According to the DSEIR, p. 2-1: The proposed Balboa Reservoir Project is located on a 17.6-
acre site in the West of Twin Peaks area of south central San Francisco (see Figure 2-1,
Location Map). The site is north of the Ocean Avenue commercial district, west of the City
College of San Francisco Ocean Campus, east of the Westwood Park neighborhood, and south
of Archbishop Riordan High School. The project site is owned by the City and County of San
Francisco (City) under the jurisdiction of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission
(SFPUC).

This Project Overview is inadequate, and does not conform to California Code of Regulations,
Title 14, 15125 (a) which states: An EIR must include a description of the physical
environmental conditions in the vicinity of the project. This environmental setting will normally
constitute the baseline physical conditions by which a lead agency determines whether an
impact is significant. . . . The purpose of this requirement is to give the public and decision
makers the most accurate and understandable picture practically possible of the project's likely
near-term and long-term impacts.

City College, Archbishop Riordan High School, and Lick Wilmerding High School are all large
institutions in the vicinity of the Project. But the DSEIR does not always consider impacts of the
Project on these institutions. Accordingly, the DSEIR is inadequate and must be revised to
comprehensively review all the environmental impacts on these locations.

7
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Further, Antioch v. Pittsburg (1986) 187 Cal. App. 3d 1325
(http://resources.ca.gov/ceqal/cases/1986/antioch 121686.html)

Stands for the proposition that an EIR must consider cumulative impacts on future projects.
CCSF is planning to do additional construction on the upper parking lot adjacent to the Project,
namely a Performing Arts Education Center and a STEAM building. But the DSEIR failed to
consider the impact of the Project on this future construction. The FSEIR must 